
BAREFOOT BAY
RECREATION DISTRICT

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Regular Meeting
September 10, 2021 at 1:00 PM

Building D&E

Agenda
Please turn off all cell phones

1. Thought of the Day

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag

3. Roll Call

4. Presentations and Proclamations

 A. 9/11 Proclamation and Milestones

5. Approval of Minutes

 A. Minutes dated August 24, 2021

6. Treasurer’s Report

 A. Treasurer's Report

7. Audience Participation

8. Unfinished Business

 A. Discussion of COVID-19 Precautions

 B. Shopping Center Electrical Upgrades Approval of Agreement 

 C. Steward Medical Group Proposed Ground Lease 

9. New Business

 A. DOR Violation 21-001596 750 Lark Drive (Vehicle Violations .)

 B. DOR Violation 21-001867 750 Lark Drive (Lawn and Landscape)

 C. DOR Violation 21-001516 750 Lark Drive (Condition of Property (C) Unauthorized items)

 D. “Color Our World Cancer Free” Request for Waiver of Guest Passes for Participants to Access 
Pavilion

 E. Restroom Trailer by Pickle Ball/Tennis Courts Award of Contract

 F. Community Center Electrical Repairs Confirmation

 G. Building A Renovations Project: Change Order #13 Confirmation

 H. FY22 Employee Pay and Classification Plan

Page 1 of 146



 I. FY23 Budget Preparation Calendar

 J. FY21 Audit Planning Communications Letter

 K. Neighborhood Revitalization Program (NRP) Purchase Confirmation: 333 Papaya Circle

 L. Neighborhood Revitalization Program (NRP) Purchase Confirmation: 401 Raven Drive

10. Manager’s Report

 A. September 10th Community Manager's Report

11. Attorney’s Report

12. Incidental Trustee Remarks

13. Adjournment

If an individual decides to appeal any decision made by the Recreation District with respect to any matter considered at 
this meeting, a record of the proceedings will be required and the individual will need to ensure that a verbatim 
transcript of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based 
(FS 286.0105). Such person must provide a method for recording the proceedings verbatim.
Barefoot Bay Recreation District Regular Meeting

Page 2 of 146



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

1 | P a g e  

 

 Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 

August 24, 2021 

         7PM –Building D&E 

 

Meeting Called to Order                                                                       

The Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees held a Meeting on August 24, 2021, Building D&E 

1225 Barefoot Boulevard, Barefoot Bay, Florida. Mr. Maino called the meeting to order at 7PM. 

 

Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag  

Led by Mr. Amoss 

 

Roll Call  

Present: Mr. Grunow, Mr. Nugent, Mr. Morrissey, Mr. Amoss, Mr. Maino. Also, present, John W. Coffey, ICMA-

CM, Community Manager, Stephanie Brown, District Clerk, Charles Henley, Finance Manager and Matt Goetz, 

Property Services Manager. 

 

Mr. Maino asked Ms. Hagemeyer (owner of 551 Marlin Circle) for the approval to add item 8.A to the agenda and 

that she has received proper notice. Ms. Hagemeyer responded that she approves. 

 

Mr. Maino requested item 8.A DOR Violation 21-001026 551 Marlin Circle to be added to the agenda. 

 

Mr. Amoss made a motion to add item 8.A to the agenda. Second by Mr. Morrissey. Motion passed unanimously. 

 

Presentations and Proclamations  

None. 
 
Approval of Minutes  

Mr. Grunow made a motion to approve minutes dated August 13, 2021. Second by Mr. Nugent. Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 

Treasurer’s Report  
Mr. Morrissey made a motion to approve the Treasurer’s Report for August 24, 2021, as read. Second by Mr. 

Grunow. Motion passed unanimously. 

 
Audience Participation 
Tom Nelson-1008 Waterway Drive-voiced his concern about no action being taken by the BOT regarding violation 
21-001026 551 Marlin Circle at the August 13, 2021, BOT Meeting. 
 
Delores Russo-574 Marlin Circle-stated that she has been around the dog of the homeowners in violation case 
21-001026 551 Marlin Circle and has found that the dog is not aggressive, and she hasn’t had any negative 
encounters with the dog in question. 

Page 3 of 146



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

2 | P a g e  

 

  
Unfinished Business  
 
DOR Violation 
 
DOR Violation 21-001026 551 Marlin Circle 
 
Mr. Maino explained the reasoning for bringing violation 21-001026 551 Marlin Circle back before the BOT. Mr. 
Repperger also read the applicable excerpt from the Policy Manual regarding the violation.  
 
The homeowners (Gina and Eugene Hagemeyer) that received the violation stated that they have been 
compliant, the ticket issued by Brevard County Sherriff’s Office has since been dismissed and they would like the 
issue to be resolved. They also stated that their dog was proven to be not aggressive.  
 
Fred Firlein-639 Marlin Circle (resident/employee who filed the complaint). Stated that homeowners were fined 
and violated by Brevard County Sheriff’s Office.  
 
Pat Zwerin-552 Marlin Circle-spoke about a previous incident of aggressive behavior involving her dog and the 
homeowners dog from 551 Marlin Circle. 
 
Mr. Morrissey asked where the incident took place. Homeowner Gina Hagemeyer stated it was on her property, 
Mr. Fierlein stated that he was across the street from the property. Mr. Grunow stated that he visited the 
homeowners who were in violation, and found the dog to be not aggressive, but also that their screen did not 
have a secure latch. Mr. Grunow spoke in favor of dismissing the violation action. 
 
Mr. Amoss made a motion to refer violation 21-001026 551 Marlin Circle to the General Counsel Repperger for 
legal action, equitable or other appropriate action with failure to comply. If the BOT brings any such action to 
enforce the DOR, the charge of such action shall be charged to the Respondents account and shall constitute as a 
lien. Second by Mr. Nugent. Motion fails 4-1. Mr. Maino was in favor. 
 
Mr. Grunow made a motion to dismiss the action of violation 21-001026 551 Marlin Circle in its entirety. Second 
by Mr. Nugent. Motion passed unanimously. 

 
Discussion of COVID-19 Precautions  
 
Mr. Maino had questions about what we could do as a public entity. Mr. Repperger responded that precautions 
can be implemented for BBRD facilities in regard to health and safety, but BBRD cannot fine residents for failure 
to comply with a mask mandate. Mr. Nugent spoke in favor of residents being given the option on whether or not 
to wear masks. Mr. Grunow asked if there has been a spike in COVID-19 cases within Barefoot Bay. Mr. Coffey 
responded that he was not aware in any rise of COVID-19 cases.  
 
BOT consensus to not impose any restrictions at this time and revisit at the next BOT meeting. 
 
 
 
 

Page 4 of 146



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

3 | P a g e  

 

 
 
Steward Medical Group Proposed Ground Lease  
 
Mr. Repperger made a request to the BOT to table this agenda item until the September 10, 2021, BOT Meeting. 
 
Mr. Nugent made a motion to table agenda item to the September 10, 2021, BOT Meeting. Second by Mr. Amoss. 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Shopping Center Electrical Upgrades Approval of Agreement  
 
Mr. Repperger made a request to the BOT to table this agenda item until the September 10, 2021, BOT Meeting. 
 
Mr. Morrissey made a motion to table agenda item to the September 10, 2021, BOT Meeting. Second by Mr. 
Grunow. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Case No. 15-000310 05-2017-CA-018583 453 Egret Circle  
Options: 
1. Pursue Final Judgment for full amount of fees and costs (approx. $3,098.50+ fees to pursue the same). Would 
require expenditure of approximately $1,750.00 more in legal fees. 
 2. Pursue Final Judgment for costs only ($496.00). 3. Dismiss litigation/reflect amounts on owner account 
(unsecured). 
 
Mr. Grunow made a motion to dismiss litigation and reflect amounts on owner accounts. Second by Mr. Nugent. 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Case No.: 18-000591 05-2020-CA-052788 1025 Wren Circle 
Options: 
1. Pursue Final Judgment for full amount of fees and costs (approx. $2,455.74 + fees to pursue the same). Would 
require expenditure of approximately $1,750.00 more in legal fees.  
 
2. Dismiss litigation/reflect amounts on owner account (unsecured) or waive fees due to owner’s personal 
financial situation. 
 
Mr. Amoss asked if money is still owed would they be suspended. Mr. Henley responded yes if there are any 
amounts owed, they are automatically suspended. Mr. Repperger stated if fees are waived, they would be in 
compliance, and there would be no suspension. 
 
Mr. Grunow made a motion to Dismiss litigation/reflect amounts on owner account (unsecured). Second by Mr. 
Amoss. 
 
Mr. Grunow made an amended motion to dismiss the legal action and waive fees for Case No.: 18-000591 05-
2020-CA-052788 1025 Wren Circle. Second by Mr. Amoss. Motion passed unanimously. 

 
 
 

Page 5 of 146



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

4 | P a g e  

 

 
 
New Business 
 
Shopping Center Lease Renewal: Sunshine Rental & Sales 
Staff recommends the BOT approve a five-year lease renewal for Building 1, Suite 7 at the Shopping Center 
according to the terms of the initial lease and authorize the Chairman to execute the renewal agreement when it 
becomes available from BBRD General Council Repperger. 
 
Mr. Morrissey made a motion to approve a five-year lease renewal for Building 1, Suite 7 at the Shopping Center 
according to the terms of the initial lease and authorize the Chairman to execute the renewal agreement when it 
becomes available from BBRD General Council Repperger. Second by Mr. Grunow. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Shopping Center Lease: NAIYA, Inc. d/b/a Barefoot Bay Food Store 
Staff recommends the BOT approve a five-year lease for Building 1, Suite 1 at the Shopping Center according to 
the agreed upon terms and authorize the Chairman to execute the lease agreement when it becomes available 
from the BBRD General Council Repperger. 
 
Mr. Nugent made a motion to approve a five-year lease for Building 1, Suite 1 at the Shopping Center according to 
the agreed upon terms and authorize the Chairman to execute the lease agreement when it becomes available 
from the BBRD General Council Repperger. Second by Mr. Grunow. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Authorization of Certificate to Non-Ad Valorem Assessment Roll for FY2021/22 and Resolution 
 
Resolution 2021-13 read by Mr. Repperger: 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR THE 
PREPARATION, ADOPTION, AND AUTHORIZATION OF CERTIFICATION OF A NON-AD VALOREM ASSESSMENT ROLL; 
PROVIDING FOR CORRECTIONS OF ERRORS AND OMISSIONS; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Mr. Nugent made a motion to approve Resolution 2021-13 as read and authorize Chairman Maino to sign the 
Certificate to Non-Ad Valorem Assessment Roll for FY2021/22. Second by Mr. Grunow. Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
Liability & Workers’ Compensation Insurance Award of Contract 
Staff recommends the BOT award liability and workers’ compensation insurance coverage to Florida Insurance 
Alliance for $147,083.00.  
 
Mr. Amoss made a motion to award liability and workers’ compensation insurance coverage to Florida Insurance 
Alliance for $147,083.00. Second by Mr. Morrissey. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6 of 146



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

5 | P a g e  

 

 
 
Employee Insurance Renewals 
Health Insurance 
 
Staff recommends the BOT adopt the following plans for FY22 at 85.0% employer-paid premiums and at 40% 
dependent coverage at an estimated cost of $370,169:  
 
1. Renewal POS HFHP V5 6105  
2. Renewal HFHP HMO 6600/100 (Obamacare affordable plan) 
 
Dental Insurance 
Staff recommends the BOT award contract for dental insurance to Principal at a cost of $7,7,432.56 to BBRD. 
 
Group Life and AD&D Insurance 
Staff recommends the BOT award contract for Group Life and AD&D Insurance to Principal at  
an annual cost of $1,195.32. 
 
Vision Insurance 
Staff recommends the BOT award contract for employee paid vision insurance to Principal for  
the VSP Choice plan at no cost to BBRB. 
 
Supplemental Short-Term Disability Insurance 
Staff recommends the BOT award contract to Principal for supplemental life and accidental  
death & dismemberment (AD&D) insurance at zero cost to BBRD. 
 
Mr. Nugent made a motion to accept employee insurance renewals as presented by Mr. Coffey for the total 
amount of $378,796.90. Second by Mr. Morrissey. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Selection of RFP Evaluation Committee Member for Building A Retaining Wall Repairs Project 
Staff recommends the selection of one Trustee to serve as a voting member on the Request for Proposal (RFP) 
Evaluation Committee for the building A wall repairs project. 
 
Mr. Coffey stated voting members will be Matt Goetz and Chairman Emeritus Klosky, CDO, trustee to be 
determined. Non-voting members are Community Manager John Coffey and Chairman Maino. RFP will be issued 
on August 31, 2021, and closes on October 1, 2021. 
 
Consensus of the BOT to appoint Mr. Grunow to serve as a voting member on the Request for Proposal (RFP) 
Evaluation Committee for the Building A Retaining Wall Repairs Project.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7 of 146



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

6 | P a g e  

 

 
Selection of RFP Evaluation Committee Member for Golf Course Lake Bank Restoration Projects 
Staff recommends the selection of one Trustee to serve as a voting member on the Request for Proposal (RFP) 
Evaluation Committee for the Golf Course Lake Bank Restoration Projects. 
 
Mr. Coffey stated voting members will be Ernie Cruz and Harvey Smith, trustee to be determined. Non-voting 
members are Community Manager John Coffey and Chairman Maino. RFP will be issued on August 25, 2021, and 
closes on September 24, 2021. 
 
Consensus of the BOT to appoint Mr. Amoss to serve as a voting member on the Request for Proposal (RFP) 
Evaluation Committee for the Golf Course Lake Bank Restoration Projects. Second by. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Discussion of Amending Rules for the BOT 
 
Mr. Amoss gave an overview of proposed amendment regarding breaking a tie during a trustee nomination. Mr. 
Maino spoke in favor or the proposal, but with some verbiage changes. Mr. Grunow agreed with Mr. Maino and 
also stated that a resident suggested adding standardized questions to the potential BOT candidates. Mr. Nugent 
asked if it is within the BOT authority to change or choose the way a candidate is elected to fill a vacancy. Mr. 
Repperger responded yes; the BOT is in control of how a vacancy is filled.  
 
BOT Consensus for Mr. Amoss to work with Mr. Repperger to refine the proposal and bring it back to the BOT for 
consideration. 
 
 
Manager’s Report 
 
Resident Relations 
ARCC Meeting 08/17/2021  

• 1 old business permit: 1 tabled (permit package is still incomplete) 

• 7 consent permits: all approved 

• 13 other permits: all approved  
 
Next ARCC Meeting 08/31/2021  

• Will be held in Building D/E at 9am 
 
Violations Committee Meeting 08/27/2021  

• 29 cases are on the agenda 
 
Next Violations Committee Meeting 

• Scheduled for September 10th in Bldg. D/E at 10am 
 

Food & Beverage 

• Labor Day, Monday September 6 th: 
o The 19th Hole kitchen will be closed 
o The 19th Hole bar will be open from 11am-8pm 

Page 8 of 146



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

7 | P a g e  

 

o The Lounge will be open from noon – 8pm 
o Grab n’ go boxed lunches and hot dogs will be available at both locations  

 

Property Services 

• Repaired chlorine and acid feeders at Pool #1 

• Completed the retrofitting of the new long-term records storage unit (shelving installation next, then items 
can be transferred from the vault) 

• Began cleaning of Building A in anticipation of the assembly room opening for use by the public on 
September 1st 

• Patched walls and touched up paint in Building A assembly room 

• Repaired loose ladder at Pool #2 

• Disconnected the ice machine (Building A) from its temporary location and prepped for move (later installed 
in permanent location in the kitchen by Parkit sub-contractor) 

• Located and repaired AC leak in the Convenience Store (i.e., not a roof leak as commonly believed) 

• Repaired broken chain on the swings at the playground 

• Constructed 2 new picnic tables  

• Repaired a broken meat slicer at the 19th Hole  

• Installed a new fire extinguisher at Building A 

• Continued to solicit bids for upcoming projects 

• Recruited and began training of the new Custodian Supervisor 

• Replaced the AED unit at the tennis courts stolen from BBRD ($1,200.00 replacement cost) 

• Facilitate BBRD wide fire safety inspection (no violations found) 
 

Golf-Pro Shop 
• Irrigation Pumps shaft and rebuild of packing boxes (date of completion will be provided once 

pumps are inspected by vendor) 
o 2nd Pump removed on August 9 th for the same service as Pump #1 and wil l be returned when 

complete 
o Watering schedules on course will be varied to ensure one pump can cycle all areas of course 

needing water 

• Directional signs for Pro Shop: In progress  

 

General Information 

RV Storage Lot CCTV Repairs - Staff recently signed a proposal to repair the CCTV systems and upgrade lightning 

protection. 

Building A Renovations Project Update – Staff anticipated receiving a change order for the platform installation 

this week. Preliminary information indicates the platforms will installed 6-8 weeks after permitting is approved.  

 

Building A Towers Roof Replacement Project Update – The new roofs passed final inspection yesterday. 

 

FY22 R&M/Capital Projects Schedule – The September project tracker given to the Trustees at the first meeting 

of the month will contain the budgeted FY22 projects in September’s edition. 

 

Page 9 of 146



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

8 | P a g e  

 

Community Center Electrical Outage Update – The outage that has resulted in multiple amentities/marquee 

sign/memorial garden fountain pump/area lights/lawn bowling irrigation pump house not working has been 

identified as a failure of one of BBRD’s underground electrical supply lines. Compunding the problems are an 

antiquated meter and anciliary equipment that is not up to code and will need to pass final inspection for the 

wire replacement. One vendor (Complete Electric) has provided staff with a ballpark price of $21,000 for the 

repairs/upgrade work. The vendor has a good history of reasonable prices and quality work in BBRD. Staff 

recommends the BOT authorize the Community Manager to sign the formal bid when it arrives without seeking a 

second bid and then placing the issue on the next agenda for public confirmation. 

 

BOT Consensus to authorize the Community Manager to sign the formal bid up to $25,000 when it arrives without 

seeking a second bid and then placing the issue on the next agenda for public confirmation.  

 
Attorney’s Report 
Mr. Repperger stated he would have an update on the beach pilings on the September 10, 2021, BOT meeting 
and DOR case report by the end of the week. 
 
Incidental Trustee Remarks 
 
Mr. Grunow asked if Building A would still be opening on Sept 1, 2021. Mr. Coffey responded Building A will be 
open with the exception of the kitchen. 
 
Mr. Maino reminded residents about the upcoming election and that the qualifying week is this week. He also 
clarified that the proposal to extend trustee term lengths will not involve additional elections. 
 
 
 
Adjournment 
 

The next meeting will be on September 10, 2021, at 1pm in Building D/E. 

Mr. Amoss made a motion to adjourn. Second by Mr. Nugent. Mr. Maino adjourned. 

Meeting adjourned at 8:56pm. 

  
 
 

_____________________________    _____________________________ 

         Jeff Grunow, Secretary         Stephanie Brown, District Clerk 

 

Page 10 of 146



Total Petty Cash: 2,500.00$                    

452,522.54                 

452,522.54                 

1,350,681.90              

699,810.67                 

2,050,492.57              

2,505,515.11$     

 $                 79,047.52 

                          128.54 

                            60.40 

                                   -   

                                   -   

79,236.46$           

Expenditures for 8/18/21 - 9/1/21
Check 

Number Vendor Description Check Amount

57601 The Property Squad Inc. Purchase of 401 Raven Dr - NRP 13,200.00                        

57629 Home Depot Credit Services Building and Grounds Supplies 5,299.06                          

57644 White Bird Law Legal Fees 10,259.50                        

57648 Complete Electric Inc. 30% Deposit for Community Center Electrical Repairs 6,288.00                          

57657 Florida Power & Light Co Electricity 8,706.32                          

57667 Special District Services, Inc Management Fees 13,774.06                        

57668 TLC Engineering Solutions Inc 19th Hole Walk in Cooler Project 5,985.68                          

PayChex Net Payroll for the pay period ending Aug 15, 2021 55,471.67                        

United States Treasury Payroll Taxes -  for the pay period ending Aug 15, 2021 14,776.53                        

PayChex Net Payroll for the pay period ending Aug 29, 2021 56,304.72                        

190,065.54$         

42,735.49$           

232,801.03$         Total Expenditures:

Expenditures under $5,000:

Total Deposits Received:

Total Expenditures $5,000 and above:

MB&T Money Market Account

Interest Received: Money Market Account

Interest Received: SBA Account

Interest Received: Other Interest

Barefoot Bay Recreation District
Treasurer's Report
September 10, 2021

Total Cash Balances in General Fund:

Assessments Received:

Daily Deposits:

Petty Cash

Cash Balances in General Fund as of 9/1/21

Operating Cash in Banks
MB&T Operating Account

Total Operating Accounts:

Interest Bearing Accounts

SBA Reserve Account

Total Interest Bearing Accounts:

Total Daily Deposits and Assessments Received for 8/18/21 - 9/1/21

Page 1

Page 11 of 146



Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo
Date: Friday, September 10, 2021
Title: Discussion of COVID-19 Precautions
Section & Item: 8.A
Department: Adminstration, District Clerk
Fiscal Impact: N/A
Contact: John W Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
Attachments:
Reviewed by General Counsel: N/A
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
 

Background and Summary Information
BBRD lifted the last COVID-19 restriction on July 1, 2021. In late July, the CDC issued additional guidance concerning 
facial coverings. On the August 13, 2021, the BOT decided to assess conditions and discuss possible precautions at each 
meeting going forward.
 
Staff requests direction from the BOT regarding this matter.

Page 12 of 146



Board of 
Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Friday, September 10, 2021
Title: Shopping Center Electrical Upgrades Approval of 

Agreement 
Section & Item: 8.B
Department: Administration
Fiscal Impact: $186,015.00 (FY21 Funding of $101,500.00)
Contact: Cliff Repperger, General Counsel, General Counsel, John W 

Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
Attachments:
Reviewed by General 
Counsel: Yes
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Approve Chairman Maino's execution of the draft proposed Agreement with Current Electrical Solutions, Inc.
 

Background and Summary Information
On June 7, 2021, the BBRD Shopping Center Electrical Upgrade Evaluation Committee recommended the award 
to Current Electrical Solutions, Inc. 

On June 22, 2021, the Board of Trustees approved the award of the contract to Current Electrical Solutions, Inc. 

Attorney Repperger to provide a final draft proposed Agreement in advance of the meeting. 

Page 13 of 146



Board of 
Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Friday, September 10, 2021
Title: Steward Medical Group Proposed Ground Lease 
Section & 
Item:

8.C

Department: Administration
Fiscal 
Impact:

Rental Max $20,000.00 annually Initial 
Term/$25,000.00 annually, each of two (2) 
Renewal Terms.

Contact: Cliff Repperger, General Counsel, General Counsel, John W Coffey, ICMA-
CM, Community Manager

Attachments
:

Draft Ground Lease Agreement BBRD and Steward Medical Group, 
Exhibit A Legal Description for Ground Lease with Parcel Sketch, Exhibit B 
Conceptual Site Plan Steward Medical Group Land Lease, Executed LOI 
December 3, 2020 Ground Lease Steward Medical Group-BBRD

Reviewed by 
General 
Counsel: Yes
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Approve Commercial Ground Lease with Steward Medical Group.
 

Background and Summary Information
BOT executed a Letter of Intent with Steward Medical Group on December 4, 2020.
 
General Counsel investigated and resolved issues regarding designation of Subject Property as a “park parcel” 
pursuant to prior Resolution 97-1 during Spring of 2021.
 
Resolution of the issue required the repeal of Resolution 97-1, which was approved August 13, 2021.

Page 14 of 146



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 1 of 32 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP 
AND 

BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 

COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT 

 

 
 

  

Page 15 of 146



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 2 of 32 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

ARTICLE 1.  LEASE AGREEMENT, TERM, RENEWAL, AND RENTAL ................................................................. 4 
 SECTION 101.  PROPERTY 
 SECTION 102.  TERM AND RENEWAL 
  SUBSECTION 102.1  TERM OF LEASE 
  SUBSECTION 102.2  OPTION TO RENEW 
 SECTION 103.  USE OF PROPERTY 
  SUBSECTION 103.1.  IMPROVEMENTS TO PROPERTY 
  SUBSECTION 103.2.  DELIVERY AND ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROPERTY 
  SUBSECTION 103.3   PAYMENT AND PERFORMANCE BOND 
 SECTION 104.  BASE RENT AND ADJUSTMENTS 
  SUBSECTION 104.1  BASE RENT 
  SUBSECTION 104.2  ADDITIONAL RENT FOR AD VALOREM TAXES 
  
 SECTION 105.  DELINQUENT PAYMENTS 
 
ARTICLE 2:  BBRD AND TENANT OBLIGATIONS  ................................................................................................. 8 
 SECTION 201.  COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS 
 SECTION 202.  REPAIRS AND ALTERATIONS 
 SECTION 203.  UTILITIES AND SITE ACCESS 
 SECTION 204.  UTILITY CHARGES 
 SECTION 205.  ADDITIONAL TENANT OBLIGATIONS 
 SECTION 206.  FAILURE OF TENANT TO COMPLETE CONSTRUCTION 
 SECTION 207.  ADDITIONAL COVENANTS, WARRANTIES & REPRESENTATIONS  OF BBRD 
 SECTION 208.  SIGNS 
 SECTION 209.    EXCLUSIVITY   
 
ARTICLE 3:  TAXES      ............................................................................................... 11 
 SECTION 301.  AD VALOREM TAXES 
 SECTION 302.  SOLID WASTE FEES 
 SECTION 303.  STORM WATER FEES 
 SECTION 304.  EMERGENCY AMBULANCE/EMS FEES 
 SECTION 305.  OTHER TAXES AND FEES 
  
ARTICLE 4:  INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY   ..........................................................................................12 
 SECTION 401.  LIABILITY INSURANCE 
 SECTION 402.  PROPERTY INSURANCE 
 SECTION 403.  INSURANCE CERTIFICATES 
 SECTION 404.  ADDITIONAL INSURANCE 
 SECTION 405.  COMPLIANCE 
 SECTION 406.  RIGHT TO EXAMINE 
 SECTION 407.  PERSONAL PROPERTY 
 SECTION 408.  INDEMNIFICATION 
 
ARTICLE 5:  PREVENTION OF USE OF THE PROPERTY ........................................................................................ 15 
 
ARTICLE 6:  DEFAULT  BY TENANT    ............................................................................................... 16 
 
ARTICLE 7:        DEFAULT BY BBRD      ............................................................................................... 16 
 
ARTICLE 8:  REAL ESTATE COMMISSION    ............................................................................................... 17 
 
ARTICLE 9:  IDENTITY OF INTEREST    ............................................................................................... 17 
 
ARTICLE 10:  NOTICES AND REPORTS    ............................................................................................... 17 
 
ARTICLE 11:  MEMORANDUM OF LEASE     .............................................................................................. 18 
 
ARTICLE 12:  ENTRY OF BBRD      .............................................................................................. 18 
 

Page 16 of 146



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 3 of 32 

ARTICLE 13  LEASE EXPIRATION     ............................................................................................... 18  
 
ARTICLE 14:  QUIET ENJOYMENT     ............................................................................................... 19 
 
ARTICLE 15:  BBRD POLICIES      ............................................................................................... 19 
 
ARTICLE 16:  NONDISCRIMINATION    ............................................................................................... 20 
 
ARTICLE 17:  WARRANTIES     ............................................................................................... 20 
 
ARTICLE 18:  ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING   ............................................................................................... 20 
 
ARTICLE 19:  ENVIRONMENTAL REPRESENTATIONS AND INDEMNIFICATION ........................................... 21 
 SECTION 1901.  ENVIRONMENTAL REPRESENTATIONS BY TENANT 
 SECTION 1902.  ENVIRONMENTAL INDEMNIFICATION BY TENANT 
 
ARTICLE 20:  MORTGAGE INTEREST    ............................................................................................... 21 
 
ARTICLE 21:  ATTORNEYS FEES     ............................................................................................... 26 
 
ARTICLE 22:  OTHER PROVISIONS    ..........................................................................................27 
 SECTION 2201. REASONABLE AND GOOD FAITH 
 SECTION 2202. FORCE MAJEURE 
 SECTION 2203. HEADINGS 
 SECTION 2204. BINDING EFFECT 
 SECTION 2205. RIGHTS RESERVED 
 SECTION 2206. NO WAIVER 
 SECTION 2207. SEVERABILITY 
 SECTION 2208. INTERPRETATION OF AGREEMENT 
 SECTION 2209. NO AGENCY 
 SECTION 2210. JURISDICTION AND VENUE 
 SECTION 2211. ENTIRETY OF AGREEMENT 
 
 
EXHIBIT A:  DESCRIPTION OF LEASE PROPERTY   ............................................................................................... 31 
 
EXHIBIT B:  TENANT CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN  ............................................................................................... 32 
 
 

Page 17 of 146



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 4 of 32 

LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
 THIS LEASE AGREEMENT (hereinafter referred to as the “Lease” or “Agreement”), made and entered 

into this                       day of                            , 2021, by and between BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION 

DISTRICT, an independent special district of the State of Florida, having its principal office and place of business 

at 625 Barefoot Blvd., Barefoot Bay, FL 32976 (“BBRD” or “District”) and STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP c/o 

STEWARD HEALTH CARE SYSTEM, LLC, a corporate entity, maintaining its principal office and place of 

business at 1900 Pearl Street, Suite 2400, Dallas, Texas 75201 ("Tenant"). 

 
WITNESSETH THAT: 

 
 WHEREAS, BBRD has the exclusive right and power to lease certain Property (as herein defined) located 

in the County of Brevard, State of Florida; and, 

 WHEREAS, BBRD desires to lease to Tenant, and Tenant desires to lease from BBRD, the Property 

upon the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises, covenants, terms and conditions herein set forth, 

the parties have agreed and do agree as follows: 

 
ARTICLE 1 

LEASE AGREEMENT, TERM, RENEWAL, AND RENTAL 
 

 SECTION 101: PROPERTY.  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth hereinafter, BBRD leases 

hereby to Tenant and Tenant rents hereby from BBRD, the property described on Exhibit A attached hereto (the 

"Property"), consisting of approximately .51 acres.   Exhibit A consists of both a survey sketch and legal description 

of the Property.  A copy of Tenant’s Conceptual Site Plan Aerial Illustration is attached hereto as Exhibit B 

(“Conceptual Site Plan”) and is incorporated herein by reference.  The Parties agree that this Agreement shall be 

amended to incorporate and replace the Conceptual Site Plan in Exhibit B with a copy of the Actual Site Plan (“Actual 

Site Plan”) to be submitted by Tenant to the Board of County Commissions of Brevard County (“Brevard County”) 

once final approval of the Actual Site Place is approved by Brevard County and any other appropriate regulatory 

agencies.  Tenant, its directors, officers, employees, agents, contractors, suppliers, customers, invitees and guests, 

shall have the right of ingress to and egress from the Property over adjacent property owned by  BBRD, including 

the use of the publicly dedicated rights-of-way and BBRD controlled vehicular rights-of-way adjacent to the Leased 

Property if approved by Brevard County, as part of the approval of the Actual Site Plan, subject to such reasonable 

policies, rules, and regulations as may be established by BBRD with respect to areas controlled by BBRD.  

Page 18 of 146



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 5 of 32 

 

 SECTION 102.   TERM AND RENEWAL 

  Subsection 102.1.  Term of Lease.  The Initial Term of this Lease shall be for a period of ten (10) 

years  commencing on the _____ day of _________, 20     (“Commencement Date”) and terminating on the last day 

of the one hundred twentieth (120th) month following the Commencement Date. 

  Subsection 102.2.  Option to Renew.  BBRD does hereby grant to Tenant the right, privilege and 

option to renew this Lease for two (2) additional terms of ten (10) years each, from the date of expiration of the Initial 

Term hereof upon the terms and conditions as herein contained, provided notice in writing to BBRD of Tenant’s 

intention to exercise said options is given at least one-hundred twenty (120) days prior to the expiration of the term 

hereof  (unless lack of notice is waived by BBRD) and provided that Tenant shall not be in material default under the 

terms of this Lease beyond any applicable cure period at the time of such notice and provided further that this Lease 

is then in effect.  Whenever reference is made herein to the “term” of this Lease, it shall include the Initial Term 

described in Section 102.1 above and the renewal terms described in this Subsection 102.2. 

 

 SECTION 103.  USE OF PROPERTY 

  Subsection 103.1.  Improvements to the Property.  BBRD acknowledges hereby that Tenant is 

leasing the Property for the purpose of constructing, maintaining and operating a medical clinic/facility on the 

Property, and all other facilities necessary for or related to Tenant’s present and future business, and that in order to 

utilize the Property for this purpose, it will be necessary to construct buildings and other improvements (collectively, 

“Improvements”) upon the Property and to make alterations and renovations thereto at Tenant's sole cost and expense.  

Upon the Commencement Date of this Lease, BBRD will provide authorization for Tenant to act as Applicant on its 

behalf for any required license, permit, or site plan applications.  Tenant shall be solely responsible for all costs related 

to any such applications.  Tenant shall use its best efforts to provide BBRD copies of any and all license, permit, and 

site plan applications filed with Brevard County or other regulatory agencies at least fourteen (14) days in advance 

of filing.  Tenant’s activities shall in no way interfere with the established use of BBRD adjacent commercial 

shopping center and/or its related parking. Tenant shall be solely responsible for all costs associated with the 

extension of any required utility lines necessary to serve the Leased Property and for the construction of any required 

stormwater maintenance system serving the Leased Property that arises from its Improvement/development of 

Tenant’s Improvements. BBRD will grant any required temporary easements for development purposes so long as 

Tenant shall not unreasonably interfere with BBRD business operations during the Improvement/development 

process. The parties shall reasonably coordinate Improvement/development efforts and business operations during 

Page 19 of 146



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 6 of 32 

development of the Leased Property.  Tenant shall take the subject property “AS IS” and shall be solely responsible 

for any required cost(s) and expense(s) arising from any inherent site condition that creates an impediment to 

Improvements/development. Tenant hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless BBRD from any code 

enforcement or regulatory compliance fines or assessments levied by Brevard County or any other regulatory agency 

as a result of Tenant’s noncompliance with any approved permit or site plan requirement(s). At the termination of 

this Lease and any applicable renewal term(s), BBRD shall have the option of accepting the Improvements, including 

a planned modular building or requiring its removal by Tenant. All Improvements such as parking, utilities, and 

drainage shall become property of BBRD.  Except for removal of the planned modular building, Tenant shall have 

no obligation to remove site improvements upon termination of the Lease or renewal term(s), if any. 

 For purposes of this Lease, the term “Construction Period” shall mean the period from the Commencement 

Date (as defined in Subsection 102.1 above) until the Rent Commencement Date (as defined in Subsection 104.1 

below).  Tenant shall, upon obtaining any and all necessary government permits and/or approvals, have the right to 

change, alter, raze or add to any Improvements, or any part thereof, now existing or change, alter, or add to any 

Improvements, or any part thereof hereafter erected, constructed, or installed on the Property and to remove (other 

than the planned modular building upon termination if to be retained by BBRD) the personal property (the 

“Personalty”) installed or placed by Tenant in, on, or about the Improvements on the Property.  BBRD acknowledges 

and agrees that title to all future Improvements and Personality shall not be in BBRD, but is and shall remain in 

Tenant or any sub-Tenant of Tenant during the term of this Lease.  Should BBRD accept ownership of the planned 

modular building at the expiration of the Lease Agreement, Tenant shall sign any appropriate title to such planned 

modular building over to BBRD without additional consideration. 

 Subsection 103.2.  Delivery and Acceptance of the Property.   In the event that Tenant is unable to secure 

necessary governmental approvals, permits, and licenses for the Improvements and/or Actual Site Plan within 

fifteen (15) months from the Commencement Date, then this Lease shall be null and void ab initio, and neither 

party shall have any further obligation to the other hereunder, and payments previously made by Tenant to BBRD 

shall be retained by BBRD. BBRD shall not be required to expend any money or incur any costs in assisting 

Tenant in securing approval for Improvements. BBRD does not guarantee the successful or timely issuance of 

said approvals, grants, permits, or authorizations by any governmental agency. 

Subsection 103.3. Payment and Performance Bond.  Prior to entering into any contract for the 

construction, improvement or repair of any building or structure, or for any other construction project, on the 

Property, Tenant shall require its contractor(s) to execute a payment and performance bond (“Bond”) with a surety 

insurer authorized to do business in the State of Florida as surety.  If Tenant acts as general contractor for any 

Page 20 of 146



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 7 of 32 

such project, then Tenant shall itself execute the Bond.  Upon execution, Tenant shall record the Bond in the 

Public Records of Brevard County, Florida and deliver a copy of the Bond to BBRD.  The Bond shall be 

conditioned upon the contractor’s performance of the construction work in the time and manner prescribed in the 

contract and promptly making payments to all persons defined in Florida Statute §713.01 who furnish labor, 

services, or materials for the accomplishment of the work provided for in the contract.  The Bond shall not contain 

any provision that restricts the classes of persons defined in Florida Statute §713.01, or that purports to affect the 

venue of any proceeding relating to the Bond.  The amount of the Bond shall equal the contract price.  The Bond 

must state on its front page: 1) the name, principal business address and phone number of the contractor, the 

surety, and BBRD as owner of the Property; 2) the contract number if applicable; and, 3) a description of the 

project sufficient to identify it.  The Bond shall in all other respects meet the requirements of Florida Statute 

§255.05, regardless of whether BBRD is party to the contract or whether the project constitutes a public work.  In 

lieu of the Bond required by this Subsection, a contractor may file with BBRD an alternative form of security in 

the form of cash, money order, certified check, cashier’s check or irrevocable letter of credit in an amount equal 

to the contract price.  

 

 SECTION 104.  BASE RENT AND ADJUSTMENTS 

Subsection 104.1.  Base Rent.   Except during the “Rent Abatement Period” and the 3-month 

extension thereof (if applicable), Annual base rent during the Initial Term shall be twenty thousand dollars 

($20,000.00) annually, payable by Tenant in twelve (12) equal monthly installments each year of the Initial Term. 

Except as otherwise set forth in this Section, Total base rent during the Initial Term shall be $200,000.00.  BBRD 

agrees to remit such sales tax to the State of Florida or other legal BBRD as required by law. 

Annual base rent during each Renewal Term shall be twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000.00) 

annually, payable by Tenant in twelve (12) equal monthly installments throughout each year of the Extension Term. 

Total base rent during each Renewal Term shall be $250,000.00. 

Rent under the Lease shall be abated for a period of nine (9) months from the Commencement Date 

of the Lease (the “Rent Abatement Period”), during which Rent Abatement Period Tenant shall pursue permitting 

approval and build-out on the Leased Property. In the event a Certificate of Occupancy/Completion has not been 

issued on or before expiration of the Rent Abatement Period, Tenant shall be entitled to one (1) three (3) month 

extension of the Rent Abatement Period (for a cumulative total of twelve (12) months for build-out of Improvements). 

In the event a Certificate of Occupancy/Completion has not been issued following the 3-month extension of the Rent 

Abatement Period, rental payments shall commence at half base monthly rent effective on the first annual anniversary 

Page 21 of 146



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 8 of 32 

of the Commencement Date of the Lease for a period not to exceed three (3) months (“Half Rent Commencement 

Date”). Unless otherwise agreed to by both parties, upon the earlier of either the issuance of a Certificate of 

Occupancy/Completion or fifteen (15) months from the Commencement Date of the Lease, full rental payments shall 

commence (“Rent Commencement Date”). 
  

  Subsection 104.2.  Additional Rent for Ad Valorem Taxes.  Tenant shall pay to BBRD as additional 

monthly rent one twelfth (1/12) of the estimated annual ad valorem tax bill and any non-ad valorem fees and 

assessments on the Property, plus sales tax.  Upon determination of the actual taxes due on the Property, Tenant shall, 

within thirty (30) days of BBRD’s notice of additional sums due pursuant to the tax bill, pay any such additional 

sums owed bill to BBRD, and in the event Tenant has overpaid them, Tenant shall receive a credit toward its next 

monthly tax payment, and continue receiving a credit until the tax credit is used up.  For purposes of estimating the 

tax payments to be paid by Tenant hereunder, BBRD shall use the prior tax year billing, which the parties 

acknowledge does not included planned improvements or increase in land valuation. Payment of applicable taxes is 

addressed further in Article 3 to this Lease. 

 

 SECTION 105.  DELINQUENT PAYMENTS.  If any rent payment is not received by BBRD within 

five (5) days after such payment is due, then a delinquent fee of one and one half percent (1.5%) of the actual 

undisputed past due amount shall be added to the rent payment and shall be paid by Tenant to BBRD.  Tenant’s 

failure to pay any installment of rent within thirty (30) days after the installment is due shall constitute an event 

of default under the terms of the Lease. 

 
ARTICLE 2 

BBRD AND TENANT OBLIGATIONS 
 

 SECTION 201.  COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS.  Tenant agrees that the business to be operated by 

it on the Property will not be operated in such a manner as to constitute a nuisance (based upon the usage of 

surrounding land on the Commencement Date) or a hazard and that in connection with the operation of the business, 

Tenant will substantially observe and comply with all applicable material laws, ordinances, orders and regulations 

applicable to the business operated by Tenant on the Property.  BBRD warrants and represents that on the 

Commencement Date, the Property is in compliance with all applicable laws, rules, ordinances, orders, and 

regulations (Laws, including, without limitation, Laws regarding Hazardous Wastes). 

 

Page 22 of 146



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 9 of 32 

 SECTION 202.  REPAIRS AND ALTERATIONS.  BBRD shall not be obligated to maintain the Property 

or the Improvements thereon during the Lease term or any renewal hereof unless required due to the negligence or 

willful act of BBRD. 

 Tenant agrees, at its sole cost and expense, to maintain all of the Improvements, including any parking 

and service areas, in a good state of repair and to keep the Property in a reasonably clean, neat and orderly 

condition. 

 

 SECTION 203. UTILITIES AND SITE ACCESS.  BBRD will cooperate with the Tenant in allowing the 

Tenant access to the adjacent shopping center property owned by BBRD for the purpose of the Tenant’s preparation 

of required engineering studies and application process necessary to extend utilities and transportation access to the 

Leased Property.  The capacity and availability of public and private utilities is not guaranteed by BBRD.  Further, 

BBRD cannot guarantee approvals for road entrances, traffic island crossovers, signalization, turning lanes, 

acceleration lanes, etc. or any other traffic control items required by Brevard County.  In the event a critical utility 

(potable water, sewer, electricity, and/or telecommunications) or adequate transportation access cannot be made 

available to the Property within fifteen (15) months of the Commencement Date, Tenant may terminate this Lease 

without prejudice.  Unless otherwise stated in the Lease, Tenant is responsible for all costs associated with the 

extension of utilities, both public and private, to the Property and Improvements necessary to provide transportation 

access.  

Tenant shall have the right to grant any easements, rights of way, and licenses required by any public or quasi-

public utility company with respect to the construction, operation and use of the Improvements and Personalty.  

BBRD shall execute any instruments any such public or quasi-public utility companies may reasonably request or 

require from BBRD; provided, however, that in each case such easement, right of way or license (i) does not 

materially impair the value, utility and remaining useful life of the Property, (ii) is reasonably necessary in connection 

with the construction, operation or use of the Improvements and the Personalty, and (iii) does not cause the Property 

or any portion thereof to fail to comply with all material requirements of law.   

 

SECTION 204. UTILITY CHARGES.  Tenant shall be responsible for charges for electricity, water, sewer, 

solid waste, or any other utility or service consumed in connection with the occupancy of the Property by Tenant.   

 

SECTION 205. ADDITIONAL TENANT OBLIGATIONS.  Brevard County will determine if the 

Improvements are of sufficient size to require a transportation concurrency study and/or other traffic access 

Page 23 of 146



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 10 of 32 

studies.  Tenant is responsible for all studies and costs associated with this requirement, as well as the assessments 

and improvements required by Brevard County.  In addition, Tenant is responsible for all transportation, utility 

and other impact fees associated with this project levied by Brevard County. 

 

 SECTION 206.  FAILURE OF TENANT TO COMPLETE CONSTRUCTION.   

 A. Tenant shall substantially complete construction of the Improvements on before fifteen (15) 

months from the Commencement Date of this Lease unless the delay in construction was caused by elements of 

Force Majeure in which event this period shall be extended by BBRD for a reasonable length of time to allow 

Tenant to complete the construction of its Improvements.    

 B.   In the event Tenant fails to complete said Improvements by the date specified herein or the date of 

any extensions granted by BBRD, then BBRD shall have the right to terminate this Lease without obligation of 

BBRD to pay Tenant any compensation for work performed and funds expended prior to such termination, 

provided, however, that BBRD delivers written notice to Tenant at least (90) ninety days in advance of the 

termination date specified in the notice and giving Tenant the opportunity to cure the development failure within 

said ninety day period.  

 

 SECTION 207.  ADDITIONAL COVENANTS, WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS OF 

BBRD.   BBRD warrants and represents that there are (i) no mortgages, liens or encumbrances, (ii) no covenants or 

restrictions, and (iii) no agreements with third parties, which may prevent or impair BBRD from performing any of 

its covenants under this Lease. 

 

 SECTION 208.  SIGNS.  Tenant shall have the right to erect and maintain such sign or signs on the Property 

and Improvements as may be permitted by applicable law. 

 

 SECTION 209.  EXCLUSIVITY.   Except for that certain lease between BBRD and Shaw Medical Group, 

LLC with a commencement date of August 1, 2020 (the "Nurse Practitioner Lease"), and as such Nurse Practitioner 

Lease may be amended or renewed, BBRD agrees that the provision of professional medical services shall at all times 

during the Initial Term or any Renewal Termbe exclusive to Tenant.  Except for the Nurse Practitioner Lease, and as 

such Nurse Practitioner Lease may be amended or renewed, BBRD agrees it shall not enter into a medical office 

space lease with a medical service provider other than Shaw Medical Group during the Initial Term or any renewal 

Page 24 of 146



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 11 of 32 

Term, nor shall BBRD allow any shopping center tenants to assign and/or change use of their respective Leased 

Property in a manner that competes with Tenant. 

 
ARTICLE 3 

TAXES 
 
 SECTION 301.  AD VALOREM TAXES.  Tenant shall pay according to the method hereinabove described 

all ad valorem taxes levied or assessed against the Property, plus sales tax, by the appropriate governmental authorities 

as a result of Tenant’s occupancy or use of the property pursuant to this Lease, whether the billing is addressed to 

BBRD or Tenant, together with all taxes levied against any stock of merchandise, furniture, furnishings, equipment 

and other property located in, on or upon the Property.   

 Tenant shall have the right to contest the validity or amount of any ad valorem tax imposed against the 

Property and the Improvements at Tenant’s sole cost and expense, however, Tenant’s contest of the validity of 

any tax imposed against the Property and Improvements shall not relieve Tenant of its obligation to pay the 

monthly tax payments called for in Section 104.2 above.  In the event Tenant is successful in its contest of the tax 

and as a result the tax is changed, then BBRD agrees to adjust the monthly tax payment due to reflect the new tax 

assessment, and Tenant agrees to pay any sums necessary to bring the monthly payments on deposit with BBRD 

to an amount sufficient to pay the annual tax bill when it comes due.  Upon adjudication (including all appeals) 

of such contest, Tenant shall pay all court costs, interest, penalties and other expenses related to the appeal. 

 

 SECTION 302.  SOLID WASTE FEES.  Tenant shall pay according to the method hereinabove described, 

all solid waste fees assessed against the Property, plus sales tax, by the appropriate governmental authorities as a 

result of Tenant’s occupancy or use of the Property pursuant to this Lease, whether the billing is addressed to BBRD 

or Tenant. 

 

 SECTION 303.   STORM WATER FEES.  Tenant shall pay according to the method hereinabove 

described, all storm water fees assessed against the Property, plus sales tax, by the appropriate governmental 

authorities as a result of Tenant’s occupancy or use of the Property pursuant to this Lease, whether the billing is 

addressed to BBRD or Tenant. 

 

 SECTION 304.   EMERGENCY AMBULANCE/EMS FEES.  Tenant shall pay according to the 

method hereinabove described, all emergency ambulance/EMS fees assessed against the Property, plus sales tax, 

Page 25 of 146



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 12 of 32 

by the appropriate governmental authorities as a result of Tenant’s occupancy or use of the Property pursuant to 

this Lease, whether the billing is addressed to BBRD or Tenant. 

 

 SECTION 305. OTHER TAXES AND FEES. Tenant shall pay as a result of Tenant’s occupancy 

or use of the property pursuant to this Lease, according to the method described above, any and all taxes, fees, or 

assessments, plus sales tax, that may be levied and not know at this time. 

 
ARTICLE 4 

INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY 
 
 SECTION 401.  LIABILITY INSURANCE.  In addition to such insurances as may be required by law, 

Tenant shall maintain, without lapse or material chance, for so long as it occupies the Property and Improvements, 

the following insurance: 

 (A)   Commercial General Liability Insurance, including Contractual Liability, to cover Tenant’s 

Property and Improvements and operations, in an amount not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit per 

occurrence for bodily injury and property damage.  BBRD must be shown as an additional insured with respect 

to this coverage.  Coverages shall be for each occurrence, with either no aggregate or an annual policy aggregate 

of no less than twice the amount of coverage required for each occurrence.  In the event that Tenant’s available 

coverage falls below the per occurrence amount shown above, Tenant shall secure a new certificate of insurance 

evidencing the required coverage.   

 (B)   Automobile Liability Insurance covering all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles (including 

ground or mobile equipment) used by Tenant in connection with its operations under this Agreement in an amount 

not less than: 

  (1)  $1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage 

covering all vehicles and ground and mobile equipment used by Tenant in connection with its business operation; 

and/or 

  (2)  $1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage 

covering such vehicles being used by Tenant on the Leased Property. 

 (C)   The insurance coverages required shall include those classifications, as listed in standard liability 

insurance manuals, which most nearly reflect the operations of Tenant under this Agreement.  All insurance 

policies required pursuant to the terms of this Agreement shall be issued in companies approved to do business 

under the laws of the State of Florida.  Such companies must be rated no less than “A” as to management, and no 

Page 26 of 146



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 13 of 32 

less than “V” as to strength in accordance with the latest edition of “Best’s Insurance Guide”, published by A.M. 

Best Company, Inc., or its equivalent, subject to approval of BBRD’s General Counsel. 

 

 SECTION 402.  PROPERTY INSURANCE: 

 (A)   Builders Risk and Hazard Insurance:  Tenant, at its sole cost and expense, throughout the term of 

this Agreement, shall keep the Improvements insured on an “All Risk” basis in an amount not less than 100% of 

the full replacement value of the Improvements against loss or damage (in excess of a reasonable per occurrence 

deductible amount, which shall be the responsibility of Tenant) by fire, lightning, tornado, hurricane, windstorm, 

hail, flood, earthquake, explosion, riot, riot attending strike, civil commotion, vandalism and malicious mischief, 

sprinklers and sprinkler leakage, aircraft, vehicles and smoke, or any other casualty in an amount not less than 

100% of the full replacement value of the Improvements to the extent such coverage is commercially available at 

commercially reasonable rates.  The full replacement value of the Improvements shall be established as of the 

Commencement Date of this Lease and shall be established at intervals of not more than three (3) years thereafter, 

by any professional property evaluators used by BBRD for establishing replacement values for BBRD property.  

Any deficiency in the amount of the proceeds from such property insurance resulting from a failure by Tenant to 

re-establish the full replacement value of the Improvements shall be the sole responsibility of Tenant.  In addition, 

BBRD shall be shown on the policies as a loss payee. 

  (1)   Damage or Destruction and Restoration of the Improvements:  In case of damage to or loss 

of all or a portion of the Improvements, Tenant shall give prompt notice thereof to BBRD; and,  Tenant shall 

promptly commence and complete with due diligence (subject only to delays beyond its reasonable control), the 

restoration of the damaged or destroyed portion of the Improvements as nearly as reasonably practicable to the 

value and condition thereof immediately prior to such damage or destruction.  In the event of such damage or 

destruction, the proceeds of all property insurance policies shall be used to restore the facility to make it function 

for the uses permitted under Article 1.  Tenant shall receive reimbursement from the proceeds of all property 

insurance policies for the Improvements and shall be obligated to provide any additional monies necessary for 

such restoration. 

 (B)   Business Interruption Insurance:  Tenant at its sole cost and expense throughout the term of this 

Agreement, shall maintain business interruption insurance at a minimum, in an amount sufficient to continue 

making land rental, and payments of taxes and insurance, during the rebuilding period as a result of damage to 

the Improvements. 

 

Page 27 of 146



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 14 of 32 

 SECTION 403.  INSURANCE CERTIFICATES:  Prior to the commencement of operations hereunder 

and annually thereafter, Tenant shall furnish or cause to be furnished certificates of insurance to BBRD which 

certificates shall clearly indicate that: 

 

(A)   Tenant has obtained insurance in the types, amounts and classifications as required for strict 

compliance with this Article; 

(B)  The policy cancellation notification provisions specify at least thirty (30) days advance written 

notice of cancellation to BBRD; 

(C)   BBRD is named as an additional insured with respect to Tenant’s commercial general liability 

policies; 

(D)   BBRD is named as a loss payee with respect to Tenant’s builder’s risk and property insurance 

policies; and 

   (E)   On said insurance certificates, liability coverage shall include contractual liability and 

notification of cancellation. 

 

 SECTION 404.   ADDITIONAL INSURANCE:  In addition to the types and levels of coverage 

provided in this Article, BBRD reserves the right to require Tenant to provide additional types of coverage and/or 

different or higher levels of coverage from time to time during this Agreement, upon issuance of notice in writing 

to Tenant, which notice shall automatically amend this Agreement effective 90 days after such notice. If such 

coverage is not commercially available, reasonable documentation with respect thereto shall be provided by 

Tenant to BBRD.  

 

 SECTION 405. COMPLIANCE:  Compliance with the requirements of this Article 4 shall not relieve 

Tenant of its liability under any other portion of this Agreement or any other agreement between BBRD and 

Tenant. 

 

 SECTION 406.  RIGHT TO EXAMINE:  BBRD reserves the right, upon reasonable notice, to examine 

true copies of applicable portions of policies of insurance (including but not limited to binders, amendments, 

exclusions, riders and applications) to determine the true extent of coverage.  Tenant agrees to permit such 

inspection at the offices of BBRD. 

 

Page 28 of 146



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 15 of 32 

 SECTION 407.  PERSONAL PROPERTY:  Any personal property of Tenant or of others placed on 

the Property and Improvements  shall be at the sole risk of Tenant or the owners thereof, and BBRD shall not be 

liable for any loss or damage, except to the extent such loss or damage was caused by the negligence or willful 

misconduct of the BBRD, as limited by Section 768.28, Florida Statutes. 

 

 SECTION 408.  INDEMNIFICATION.  Tenant shall indemnify and hold harmless BBRD and its 

Trustees, officers, employees, agents, attorneys, and instrumentalities from any and all liability, losses or 

damages, including attorneys’ fees and costs of defense, that BBRD or its Trustees, officers, employees, agents, 

attorneys or instrumentalities may be subject to as a result of claims, demands, suits, causes of action or 

proceedings of any kind or nature arising out of, relating to or resulting from the performance of this Agreement 

by Tenant, the Tenant’s business activities, and/or the actions of Tenant’s employees, agents, servants, partners, 

principals, contractors, subcontractors, sub-Tenants, or invitees.  Tenant shall pay all claims and losses in 

connection therewith and shall investigate and defend all claims, suits or action of any kind or nature in the name 

of BBRD, where applicable, including appellate proceedings, and shall pay costs, judgments and attorney’s fees 

which may issue thereon.  Tenant expressly understands and agrees that any insurance protection required by this 

Agreement or otherwise provided by Tenant shall in no way limit the responsibility to indemnify, keep and save 

harmless and defend BBRD or its Trustees, officers, employees, agents, attorneys, and instrumentalities as herein 

provided. The obligation of Tenant hereunder shall survive the termination of this Agreement.  Such payment on 

behalf of BBRD shall be in addition to any and all legal remedies available to BBRD and shall not be considered 

to be BBRD’s exclusive remedy.  In agreeing to this provision, BBRD does not intend to waive any defense or 

limit of sovereign immunity to which it may be entitled under Section 768.28, Florida Statutes or otherwise 

provided. 

ARTICLE 5 
PREVENTION OF USE OF THE PROPERTY 

If, after the effective date of this Lease, Tenant is precluded or prevented from constructing or operating the 

Improvements on the Property as contemplated by Tenant by reason of any zoning law, zoning ordinance or zoning 

regulation of any public BBRD having jurisdiction over the Property, and such prohibition shall continue for a period 

of at least ninety (90) days, then Tenant may terminate this Lease by giving to BBRD not less than thirty (30) days 

prior written notice of termination. 

 
ARTICLE 6 

DEFAULT BY TENANT 

Page 29 of 146



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 16 of 32 

 
 As used in this Lease, the term "event of default" shall mean any of the following: 

(A) The failure of Tenant to fulfill any duty or obligation imposed on Tenant by this Lease;  

(B)  The filing by Tenant of a petition or other request for any remedy or relief under the U.S. 

Bankruptcy Code, the appointment of a receiver over Tenant or Tenant’s assets, an assignment by Tenant for the 

benefit of creditors, or the participation by Tenant in any insolvency proceeding including the filing of an 

involuntary petition under 11 U.S.C. §303 that is not dismissed within ninety (90) days; without limiting the 

foregoing, this Subsection would apply to any ancillary proceedings or related relief in any insolvency type 

proceeding in any jurisdiction in the world;   

(C) The taking or the attempted taking of the Tenant’s leasehold interest hereunder pursuant to an 

execution on a judgment or otherwise.  

 Upon the happening of any event of default under paragraphs “(B)” or “(C)” of this Article 6, or upon 

Tenant’s failure to pay rent when due hereunder, BBRD may, at its option, immediately terminate this Lease and 

evict Tenant therefrom without prejudice to any other remedy.  However, upon the happening of an event of 

default under “(A)” of this Article 6, except for the failure to pay rent before the exercise of such option, BBRD 

shall give written notice of such event to Tenant, which shall have thirty (30) days thereafter within which to 

remedy or correct such default. 

ARTICLE 7 
DEFAULT BY BBRD 

 
 If BBRD fails to perform any of its covenants, agreements or other obligations under this Lease, 

and such failure continues for a period of thirty (30) days after receipt by BBRD of written notice of such failure, 

or in the event of emergency promptly after written notice, then Tenant shall have the right (but not the obligation) 

to take such actions, and to expend such monies, after BBRD’s approval of the written quote for such expenditures 

prior to Tenant authorizing the expenditure, as Tenant reasonably deems necessary or appropriate to perform 

BBRD’s covenants, agreements or obligations and BBRD provides written notification it cannot remedy such 

failure.  In such event, Tenant shall be entitled to set-off against base rent otherwise due hereunder all amounts 

which Tenant expends to perform BBRD’s obligations.  The foregoing rights of self-help and set-off shall be in 

addition to, not in lieu of, any rights and remedies which Tenant has at law, in equity or under this Lease. 

 

ARTICLE 8 
REAL ESTATE COMMISSION 

 

Page 30 of 146



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 17 of 32 

 BBRD and Tenant covenant and warrant one each to the other that it has not authorized any person, firm or 

corporation as a real estate agent or broker to deal on behalf of BBRD with Tenant or Tenant with BBRD, and BBRD 

and Tenant agree to indemnify and hold each other harmless from any claim for remuneration, commissions or 

broker’s fees arising out of this transaction and Lease. 
 

ARTICLE 9 
IDENTITY OF INTEREST 

 
 The execution of this Lease or the performance of any act pursuant to the provisions hereof shall not be 

deemed or construed to have the effect of creating between BBRD and Tenant the relationship of principal and agent 

or of a partnership or of a joint venture, and the relationship between them shall be and remain only that of BBRD 

and Tenant. 

 
ARTICLE 10 

NOTICES AND REPORTS 
 

 Any notice, report, statement, approval, consent, designation, demand or request to be given or any option 

or election to be exercised by a party under the provision of this Lease shall be effective only when received and 

when made in writing and delivered (or mailed by registered or certified mail with postage prepaid or by Federal 

Express to the other party at the following address: 

  
 BBRD:    John Coffey, ICMA-CM 
     Community Manager 
     Barefoot Bay Recreation District 
     625 Barefoot Blvd.  
     Barefoot Bay, Florida 32934 
 
 Tenant:    Sanjay K. Shetty, MD 
     Executive Vice President 
     Steward Medical Group 
     c/o Steward Health Care System 
     1900 N. Pearl Street 
     Suite 2400 
     Dallas, TX 75201      
 
Provided, however, that either party may designate a different address from time to time by giving to the other party 

notice in writing of the change.  Rental payments to BBRD shall be made by Tenant at BBRD's address provided 

herein. 

Page 31 of 146



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 18 of 32 

ARTICLE 11 
MEMORANDUM OF LEASE 

 
 Either party may file a Memorandum of the Lease with the Property Appraiser’s Office or have the Lease 

recorded by the Clerk of Court at the filing or recording party’s sole expense.  

 

ARTICLE 12 
ENTRY OF BBRD 

 
 BBRD may enter the Property during business hours with reasonable advance notice (not less than three 

(3) business days, except in emergencies constituting an immediate threat to life or property) and subject to 

Tenant’s security rules and regulations:  

 (A) To inspect or protect said Property; 

 (B) To determine whether Tenant is complying (as required under this Lease) with the applicable laws, 

orders or regulations of any lawful BBRD having jurisdiction over the Property or any business conducted therein; 

or 

 (C) To exhibit the said Property to any prospective purchaser when Tenant is in default of this Lease or 

has notified BBRD of intention to terminate this Lease or during the last six (6) months of the Initial Term or any 

Renewal Termof this Lease. 

 No authorized entry by BBRD shall constitute an eviction of Tenant or a deprivation of its rights or alter the 

obligation of BBRD or create any right in BBRD adverse to the interest of Tenant hereunder, provided BBRD shall 

not unreasonably interfere with Tenant’s use and occupancy of the Property or Tenant’s business operations. 

 
ARTICLE 13 

LEASE EXPIRATION 
 

 At the expiration of the Lease, all improvements erected on the Property shall become the sole 

property of BBRD.  Any and all trade fixtures, signs, and other personal property placed on the Property by Tenant 

(other than the planned modular building) shall remain Tenant's sole property, and Tenant shall have the right to 

remove the same within ten (10) days after expiration of the Lease, provided any damages caused by such removal 

are repaired by Tenant at the time of removal.  In the event Tenant fails to remove its personal property within ten 

(10) days after expiration of the Lease, said failure to remove shall be deemed to be an abandonment of the property.  

In the event of such abandonment, BBRD shall have the right to remove and sell or dispose of the personal property 

without providing Tenant with any notice of removal, sale, or disposal of the personal property, and without any 

Page 32 of 146



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 19 of 32 

liability to the Tenant. All monies received from any sale or disposal of the personal property by BBRD shall first be 

used to reimburse BBRD for any expenses incurred including without limitation attorney’s fees and costs of all kind 

and nature, and the balance remaining after setting off any sums still owed by Tenant to BBRD shall be remitted to 

the Tenant.  BBRD shall have the option of accepting the modular building or requiring its removal by Tenant at the 

expiration or termination of this Lease.  Should BBRD accept ownership of the planned modular building at the 

expiration of the Lease Agreement, Tenant shall sign any appropriate title to such planned modular building over to 

BBRD without additional consideration. 

 

ARTICLE 14 
QUIET ENJOYMENT 

 
 Subject to the provisions of this Lease, BBRD covenants that Tenant, on paying the rent and performing 

the covenants of this Lease on its part to be performed, shall and may peaceably and quietly have, hold, and enjoy 

the Property for the term of this Lease.  BBRD represents that it has the authority to execute this Lease and that 

it has obtained all necessary governmental authorizations or approvals to execute this Lease and that this Lease 

constitutes a valid and binding obligation of BBRD, enforceable against BBRD in accordance with its terms. 

 
 

ARTICLE 15 
BBRD POLICIES  

 From time to time, BBRD may adopt and amend Policies with respect to the occupancy and use of the 

Property. Tenant shall observe and obey such Policies and shall require its officers, agents, employees, subtenants, 

contractors, and suppliers, to observe and obey the same.  BBRD reserves the right to deny access to the Property to 

any person or entity that fails or refuses to obey and comply with such Policies, or any applicable laws.  BBRD’s 

Policies will not be inconsistent with the terms of this Lease, nor with BBRD’s governing documents, nor with any 

Brevard County Ordinance.  Tenant shall be furnished a current copy of BBRD's Policy Manual and any amendments 

thereto within ten (10) days of the Commencement Date of this Lease Agreement.   

 

ARTICLE 16 
NONDISCRIMINATION 

 
  Tenant covenants and agrees, as a covenant running with the land comprising the Property, that it will 

not discriminate against anyone in any protected class including, but not limited to race, creed, color, national origin, 

religion, gender, or sexual orientation pursuant to any title of the of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 applicable to BBRD, 

Page 33 of 146



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 20 of 32 

and as said regulations may be amended. 

  

ARTICLE 17 
WARRANTIES 

 
 BBRD warrants that upon commencement of the Lease term, the Property will be free and clear of all 

encumbrances except ad valorem taxes for the current calendar year and easements and restrictions of record; that 

there are no easements and/or restrictions of record or otherwise, which will (i) impair, preclude or adversely 

affect Tenant’s use and development of the Property, as contemplated by this Lease, (ii) interfere with Tenant’s 

rights under this Lease, or (iii) interfere with BBRD’s ability to perform its covenants and obligations under this 

Lease; that BBRD has full power and BBRD to execute this Lease and that it will warrant and defend the leasehold 

interest created hereby against all parties whomsoever and that Tenant upon observing and complying with the 

terms, covenants and conditions of this Lease shall enjoy the use and occupancy of the Property during the Lease 

term and any renewals thereof. 

 
ARTICLE 18 

ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING 
 
 Tenant shall not assign this Lease or sublet the Leased Property or any portion thereof, or otherwise transfer 

any right or interest hereunder, without the prior written consent of BBRD, which consent shall not be unreasonably 

withheld or delayed. If BBRD consents to the assignment, subletting, or other transfer of any right or interest 

hereunder by Tenant, such approval shall be limited to the particular instance specified in the consent and Tenant 

shall not be relieved of any duty, obligation, or liability under the provisions of this Lease. In the event Tenant wishes 

to assign this Lease to another party, and BBRD consents to the assignment there will be a $2,500 administrative fee 

charged to Tenant. 

 

 

 

ARTICLE 19 
ENVIRONMENTAL REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND INDEMNIFICATION 

 
SECTION 1901. ENVIRONMENTAL REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES BY TENANT. 

Tenant represents and warrants that it will comply and will be in compliance in all material respects with all 

Page 34 of 146



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 21 of 32 

applicable environmental laws, ordinances, orders or decree of all state, federal, municipal, or other governmental 

body or agency, as it relates to the subject Property. 

 Tenant further warrants that no hazardous or toxic waste or hazardous substances (as defined in the 

Comprehensive Environmental Compensation and Liability act of 1980, as amended, the Resources Conservation 

and Recovery act of 1986, as amended, or any successor or similar law) will be processed, discharged, stored, treated, 

disposed of or managed by Tenant, its assigns, subtenants, agents or contractors at the Property subject to this Lease 

other than in accordance with all federal, state and local environmental laws, regulations, codes or ordinances. 

 

SECTION 1902. ENVIRONMENTAL INDEMNIFICATION BY TENANT. Tenant hereby agrees 

to indemnify, defend and hold BBRD harmless from and against any and all claims, lawsuits, losses, liabilities, 

damages, and expenses (including without limitations cleanup costs and reasonable attorney’s fees arising by 

reason of the aforesaid or an action against Tenant under this indemnity) resulting directly or indirectly from, out 

of or by reason of (i) any Hazardous Waste being located on the Property which is attributed to Tenant, its officers, 

directors, employees, agents, assigns, subtenants, guest, invitees, contractors, or subcontractors, or (ii) any breach 

of Section 1901 or (iii) an Environmental Complaint occurring as a result of occupancy of the Property by Tenant, 

its subtenants or assigns. “Environmental Complaint” as used in the Lease means any complaint, order, citation 

or notice from a governmental or private person or entity with regard to any federal, state or local environmental 

and safety laws, regulations, codes or ordinances.  

 

ARTICLE 20 
MORTGAGE INTEREST 

 
 Notwithstanding any provision of this Lease agreement to the contrary, the provisions herein-after set forth 

shall apply to the holder of record of a first mortgage on Tenant's interest herein: 

 (A) Tenant shall have the right to mortgage Tenant's interest under this Lease to a federal or state savings 

and loan association, bank or trust company, insurance company, pension fund or trust or other institutional lender 

authorized to make leasehold mortgage loans in the State of Florida without obtaining the prior consent of BBRD, 

subject, however, to the other terms and conditions of this Lease. 

 (B) If Tenant shall mortgage its leasehold interest and if the holder of the mortgage shall forward to 

BBRD a copy of the recorded Mortgage together with a written notice setting forth the name and address of the 

leasehold mortgagee, then, until the time that the leasehold mortgage shall be satisfied or record, the following 

provisions of this paragraph shall apply. 

Page 35 of 146



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 22 of 32 

 (C) When giving notice to Tenant with respect to any default under the provisions of this lease, including 

the failure of Tenant to pay rent, BBRD will also serve a copy of such notice upon the leasehold mortgagee(s), 

which copy shall be sent by BBRD by Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested, to such mortgagee(s), which notice 

must specify the nature of each such default. 

 (D) The leasehold mortgagee, upon receipt from BBRD of the notice referred to in subparagraph (C) 

above, shall have, in addition to any period of grace extended to Tenant under the terms and conditions of this Lease, 

a period of sixty (60) days within which to cure the default or cause the same to be cured, or to commence to cure 

such default with diligence and continuity; provided, however, that as to any default of Tenant for failure to pay 

rent, the leasehold mortgagee shall be given written notice of such default by certified mail by BBRD, and the 

leasehold mortgagee shall have thirty (30) additional days from the date the notice of default was mailed within 

which to cure such default. 

 (E) In case Tenant shall default under any of the provisions of this Lease, the leasehold mortgagee shall 

have the right to cure such default, whether the same consists of the failure to pay rent or the failure to perform any 

other matter or thing which Tenant is required to do or perform, and BBRD shall accept such performance on the 

part of the leasehold mortgagee as though the same had been done or performed by Tenant.  BBRD further agrees, 

that in the case of any default by Tenant, so long as no default in respect of the payment of rent shall exist hereunder, 

that BBRD will take no action to effect a termination of the term of this Lease by the serving of a notice by reason 

of any such default, without first giving to the leasehold mortgagee a reasonable time, not to exceed sixty (60) days 

from the mailing of notice by BBRD, except payment of rent which shall be cured by leasehold mortgagee within 

thirty (30) days of mailing of notice, within which to cure said defaults [(i) to obtain possession of the premises 

(including possession by receiver) and cure such default in the case of a default which is susceptible of being cured 

when the leasehold mortgagee has obtained possession; or (ii) to institute foreclosure, or otherwise acquire Tenant's 

interest under this Lease, with diligence and continuity and, thereafter to commence and diligently proceed to cure 

such default; provided, however, that the leasehold mortgagee shall not be required to continue such possession or 

continue such foreclosure proceedings if the default which would have been the reason for serving such a notice 

shall be cured, and provided further, that nothing herein shall preclude BBRD from exercising any rights or remedies 

under this Lease with respect to any other default by Tenant during any period of such forbearance.]  BBRD agrees 

to recognize the leasehold mortgagee as Tenant under this Lease for so long as the leasehold mortgagee holds this 

Lease as a result of a foreclosure of its mortgage or as a result of the assignment of this Lease in lieu of foreclosure, 

or otherwise, whereupon such leasehold mortgagee shall immediately become and remain liable under this Lease, 

except as provided below without having to obtain the consent of BBRD to same.  In such event, the term "Tenant" 

Page 36 of 146



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 23 of 32 

as used in this section, means only the owner or holder of Tenant's interest for the time being so that in the event of 

a sale, assignment or other disposition of Tenant's interest in this Lease by the leasehold mortgagee, the mortgagee 

shall be entirely freed and released of all covenants and obligations of Tenant under this Lease. 

 (F) References in this lease to acquisition of Tenant's interest in this lease by the leasehold mortgagee 

shall be deemed to refer, where circumstances require, to acquisition of Tenant's interest in this lease by any 

purchaser at a sale on foreclosure of the leasehold mortgage, and all provisions to the leasehold mortgagee in such 

instance or instances shall also be applicable to any such purchaser. 

 (G) Any leasehold mortgage shall be specifically subject and subordinate to BBRD's rights under this 

lease.  The foregoing shall not be deemed or construed to impose or establish upon Tenant's interest in this Lease or 

upon the lien of any leasehold mortgage the superiority of any lien or encumbrance, including, without limitation, 

the lien of any fee mortgage, judgment or tax created directly or indirectly by, through or against BBRD or BBRD's 

interest in this Lease. 

 (H) In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the terms of this Article and any other provision 

of this Lease, the terms of this Article shall control. 

 (I) Within ten (10) days after written request by Tenant or Tenant's leasehold mortgage, or in the event 

that upon any sale, assignment or mortgage of Tenant's interest in this Lease by Tenant or Tenant's leasehold 

mortgagee, an estoppel certificate shall be required from BBRD, BBRD agrees to deliver in recordable form an 

estoppel certificate to any proposed leasehold mortgagee, purchaser or assignee, or to Tenant certifying (if such be 

the case): (i) the amount of rental and additional rental due under the Lease, if any, and the date to which rentals 

have been paid; (ii) that this Lease is in full force and effect; (iii) that BBRD has no knowledge of any default under 

this Lease or if any default exists, specifying the nature of the default; and (iv) that there are no defenses or offsets 

which may be asserted by BBRD against Tenant in respect of obligations pursuant to this Lease or if defenses or 

offsets exist specifying the nature of such offsets or defenses. 

 (J) BBRD agrees that the leasehold mortgagee need not pay or otherwise satisfy any claim, the lien of 

which would be extinguished upon the conclusion of foreclosure proceedings brought by the leasehold mortgagee, 

nor shall leasehold mortgagee be required to cure any default relating to the insolvency, financial condition or 

bankruptcy of Tenant, nor shall BBRD be entitled to terminate this Lease, accelerate the rent or exercise any other 

remedy under this Lease for any reason including as a consequence of Tenant's refusal, inability or failure to assume 

and affirm this Lease as an asset of Tenant's bankruptcy estate so long as, within sixty (60) days following the 

leasehold mortgagee's acquisition of title to the Property following a foreclosure of the leasehold mortgagee's 

mortgage on the Property or through a Deed in Lieu of Foreclosure, the leasehold mortgagee commences to cure 

Page 37 of 146



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 24 of 32 

defaults required to be cured by it under the language above in this paragraph and thereafter diligently prosecutes 

the same and any notice of termination theretofore given shall be void and of no force and effect.  BBRD further 

acknowledges and agrees that if, during the course of a bankruptcy proceeding involving Tenant as Debtor, Tenant 

rejects or otherwise fails to assume and affirm this Lease as an asset of Tenant's bankruptcy estate, this Lease shall 

not terminate and the leasehold mortgagee may, within sixty (60) days of receipt of written notice from BBRD of 

such rejection or other failure to assume this Lease and the irreversible release of such leasehold estate from Tenant's 

bankruptcy estate, assume this Lease by effecting a cure of the defaults required to be cured by the leasehold 

mortgagee under the language above in this paragraph and thereafter preserve the same.  BBRD further agrees that 

in the event the leasehold mortgagee forecloses its leasehold interest in the property or assigns Tenant's leasehold 

interest to a third party, BBRD will not terminate the Lease solely on account of any event of default relating to the 

insolvency, financial condition or bankruptcy of Tenant, including, without limitation, Tenant's refusal, inability or 

failure to assume and affirm the Lease as an asset of Tenant's bankruptcy estate, in which event, BBRD shall 

recognize the leasehold mortgagee as Tenant under the Ground Lease.  BBRD further agrees that the leasehold 

mortgagee may, pending foreclosure of its mortgage, take possession of the Property by and through its 

representative or receiver, as the leasehold mortgagee may elect and, provided it does so in accordance with the 

terms and provisions of the Lease, administer the Leased Property as if it were Tenant thereunder. 

 (K) If Tenant, or any trustee of Tenant, shall reject the Lease pursuant to Section 365(h) of the 

Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § 101, et seq (the "Bankruptcy Code"), (i) Tenant shall without further act or deed be 

deemed to have elected under Section 365(h) (1) of the Bankruptcy Code to remain in possession of the Property 

for the balance of the term of the Lease, (ii) any exercise or attempted exercise by Tenant of a right to treat the Lease 

as terminated under Section 365(h)(1) of the Bankruptcy Code shall be void and (iii) neither the Mortgage nor any 

other aspect of the Loan shall be affected or impaired by rejection of the Lease.  (For the purposes of Section 365(h) 

of the Bankruptcy Code, the term "possession" shall mean the right to possession of the Property granted to Tenant 

under the Lease notwithstanding that all or part of such Property shall have been subleased.) 

 (L) If, notwithstanding the provisions of subparagraph (J) above, the leasehold mortgagee reasonably 

determines that a new lease will be necessary to give legal or practical effect to the unimpaired or unaffected 

continuation of the leasehold mortgage, BBRD will enter into a new lease ("New Lease") of the Property.  In the 

event of termination of the Lease as a result of Tenant's default, or otherwise, without the prior written consent of 

leasehold mortgagee, BBRD shall, in addition to providing the notices of default and termination as required by 

subparagraph (C) above, provide the leasehold mortgagee with written notice that the Lease has been terminated 

together with a statement of all sums which would at the time be due under the Lease, but for such termination, and 

Page 38 of 146



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 25 of 32 

of all other defaults, if any, then known to BBRD.  BBRD agrees to enter into a new lease ("New Lease") of the 

Property with the leasehold mortgagee or its designee for the remainder of the term of the Lease effective, as of the 

date of termination, at the rent and additional rent, and upon the terms, covenants and conditions (including all 

options to renew but excluding requirements which are not applicable or which have already been fulfilled) of the 

Lease, provided: 

  (i)  leasehold mortgagee shall make written request upon BBRD for such New Lease within sixty 

(60) days after the date leasehold mortgagee receives BBRD's notice of termination of the Ground Lease; 

  (ii)  leasehold mortgagee or its designee shall pay or cause to be paid to BBRD at the time of the 

execution and delivery of such New Lease, any and all sums which would at the time of execution and delivery 

thereof be due pursuant to the Lease but for such termination and, in addition thereto, all reasonable expenses, 

including reasonable attorneys fees, which BBRD shall have incurred by reason of termination and the execution 

and delivery of the New Lease and which have not otherwise been received by BBRD from Tenant or other parties 

in interest under Tenant; 

  (iii)  leasehold mortgagee or its designee shall agree to remedy any of Tenant's defaults of which 

leasehold mortgagee was notified by BBRD's notice of termination and which are reasonably susceptible of being 

so cured by leasehold mortgagee or its designee; 

  (iv)   any New Lease made pursuant to this subparagraph shall be prior to any mortgage or other lien, 

charge, or encumbrance on the fee of the Property and Tenant under such New Lease shall have the same right, title 

and interest in and to the Property and the buildings and improvements thereon as Tenant had under the Lease; 

  (v)  Tenant under any such New Lease shall be liable to perform the obligations imposed on Tenant 

by such New Lease only during the period such person has ownership of such leasehold estate.  

 (M)  In the event the leasehold mortgagee becomes the legal owner and holder of the leasehold estate under 

the Lease by foreclosure of its leasehold mortgage, or as a result of an assignment of the Lease in lieu of foreclosure 

(which assignment is hereby consented to by BBRD), or in the event leasehold mortgagee is granted a New Lease 

pursuant to subparagraph (L) above, BBRD hereby agrees that upon receipt of a written application for consent to 

the assignment of Lease from either Tenant or leasehold mortgagee to a new lessee to whom leasehold mortgagee 

desires to transfer its interest, BBRD will execute a written consent to such assignment provided there is no 

outstanding default with respect to the payment of rental under the Lease.  BBRD further agrees that, upon becoming 

the owner and holder of the leasehold estate, leasehold mortgagee shall have all rights and privileges of Tenant.  

Further, BBRD agrees that upon acquisition of the leasehold estate by leasehold mortgagee, or its assigns, any 

Page 39 of 146



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 26 of 32 

default which is not reasonably capable of being cured by leasehold mortgagee, or which is personal to leasehold 

mortgagee, shall not be required to be cured by leasehold mortgagee or its assigns. 

 (N)  In the event that leasehold mortgagee shall acquire the interest of Tenant under the Lease and, in 

accordance with the foregoing subparagraph, assign such interest to a successor lessee, upon such assignment 

leasehold mortgagee shall thereupon be relieved of any further liability under the Lease.  

 (O)  This Lease may not be amended without prior written consent of leasehold mortgagee. 

 (P)  BBRD and Tenant shall cooperate in including in this Lease by suitable amendment from time to time 

any provision which may reasonably be requested by a proposed leasehold mortgagee for the purpose of 

implementing the mortgagee-protection provisions contained in the Lease and allowing such mortgagee 

reasonable means to protect or preserve the lien of the leasehold on the occurrence of a default under the terms of 

this Lease.  BBRD and Tenant each agree to execute and deliver (and to acknowledge, if necessary, for recording 

purposes) any agreement necessary to affect any such amendment; provided, however, that any such amendment 

shall not in any way affect the term or rent under this Lease, nor otherwise in any material respect adversely affect 

any rights of BBRD under this Lease.   

 

ARTICLE 21 
ATTORNEYS FEES 

 
If any legal action or other proceeding is commenced to enforce or interpret any provision of this Lease 

or any documents incidental thereto, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorneys' fees 

and costs incurred in connection with such action or proceeding from the non-prevailing party, including all 

reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs incurred on appeal or in connection with the prevailing party’s efforts to 

collect on any judgment.  The phrase "prevailing party" shall include a party who receives substantially the relief 

desired whether by dismissal, summary judgment, judgment or otherwise.  The provisions of this section shall 

survive the termination of this Lease. 

 

 

 

 

ARTICLE 22 
OTHER PROSIVIONS 

 

Page 40 of 146



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 27 of 32 

 SECTION 2201.  REASONABLENESS AND GOOD FAITH:  Whenever this Agreement grants 

BBRD or Tenant the right to take action, exercise discretion, establish rules and regulations, make allocations, or 

other determinations, or otherwise exercise rights or fulfill obligations, BBRD and Tenant shall act reasonably 

and in good faith and take no action that might result in the frustration of the reasonable expectations of a 

sophisticated landlord and sophisticated tenant concerning the benefits to be enjoyed under this Agreement. 

 

 SECTION 2202.  FORCE MAJEURE: Except as provided below, any prevention, delay, or stoppage 

attributable to strikes, lockouts, labor disputes, acts of God, civil commotion, fire or other casualty, and other 

causes beyond the reasonable control of the party obligated to perform (collectively, the Force Majeure) will 

excuse the performance of that party for a period equal to the duration of the prevention, delay or stoppage. If, 

therefore, this Agreement specifies a time period for performance of an obligation of either party, a delay that a 

Force Majeure causes will extend the period within which the party must complete its performance. The foregoing 

provisions of this Section 2202 will not apply to (1) the obligations imposed with regard to rent and other charges 

Tenant must pay in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and (ii) the obligations imposed upon BBRD to 

pay any amount becoming due to Tenant under the terms of this Agreement. 

 

 SECTION 2203. HEADINGS: Any headings preceding the text of any articles, paragraphs or sections 

of this Agreement shall be solely for convenience of reference and shall not constitute a part of this Agreement, 

nor shall they affect its meaning, construction, or effect. 

 

 SECTION 2204.  BINDING EFFECT: The terms, conditions and covenants of this Agreement shall 

inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their successors and assigns. This provision 

shall not constitute a waiver of any conditions prohibiting assignment or subletting. 

 

 SECTION 2205.  RIGHTS RESERVED: Rights not specifically granted Tenant by this Agreement are 

reserved to BBRD. 

 

 SECTION 2206.  NO WAIVER: There shall be no waiver of the right of either party to demand strict 

performance of any of the provisions, terms and covenants of this Agreement nor shall there be any waiver of any 

breach, default or non-performance hereof by either party, unless such waiver is explicitly made in writing by the 

other party.  Any previous waiver or course of dealing shall not affect the right of either party to demand strict 

Page 41 of 146



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 28 of 32 

performance of the provisions, terms and covenants of this Agreement with respect to any subsequent event or 

occurrence of any subsequent breach, default or nonperformance hereof by the other party. 

 

 SECTION 2207.  SEVERABILITY:  If any provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to 

either party to this Agreement is held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect 

other provisions of this Agreement which can be given effect without the invalid provision, and to this end, the 

provisions of this Agreement are severable. 

 

 SECTION 2208.  INTERPRETATION OF AGREEMENT: This Agreement is the result of negotiation 

between the parties hereto and has been typed/printed by one party for the convenience of both parties, and the 

parties covenant that this Agreement shall not be construed in favor of or against any of the parties hereto. 

 

 SECTION 2209.  NO AGENCY: Nothing contained herein shall be deemed or construed by the parties 

hereto or by any third party as creating the relationship of principal and agent, partners, joint venturers, or any 

other similar such relationship between the parties hereto.  It is understood and agreed that neither the method of 

computation of rentals, fees and charges, nor any other provisions contained herein, nor any acts of the parties 

hereto creates a relationship other than the relationship of landlord and tenant. 

 

 SECTION 2210. JURISDICTION AND VENUE. The parties: (a) agree that this Agreement and all 

rights and obligations hereunder shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida; (b) agree that any suit, 

action or legal proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be brought exclusively in a court of 

competent jurisdiction in Brevard County, Florida; (c) consent to the jurisdiction of a court of competent 

jurisdiction in Brevard County, Florida and expressly waive removal to a federal court; and (d) waive any 

objection either party may have to the laying of venue of any such suit, action or proceeding in a court of 

competent jurisdiction in Brevard County, Florida. 

 

 SECTION 2211.  ENTIRETY OF AGREEMENT: The parties hereto agree that this Agreement sets 

forth the entire agreement between the parties, and there are no promises or understandings other than those stated 

herein. None of the provisions, terms and conditions contained in this Agreement may be added to, modified, 

superseded, or otherwise altered, except as may be specifically authorized herein or by written instrument 

executed by the parties hereto. 

Page 42 of 146



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 29 of 32 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have set their hands and seals the date and year first above 

written. 

 
Signed, Sealed and Delivered   BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT  
in the presence of:     
 
      By:         
Witness      Mike Maino, Chairman 
       Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees  
 
       
      Attest:         
Witness      Jeff Grunow, Secretary 
       Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA  
COUNTY OF BREVARD 
 

THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT was acknowledged before me this _____ day of 
____________________________, 2021, by MIKE MAINO, as Chairman of the Board of Trustees for 
BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT who personally appeared before me, [  ] is personally known 
to me or [  ] has produced ____________________________________________________ as identification. 
 
___________________________________ 
Notary Public 
Name: _____________________________ 
My Commission Expires: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      TENANT: 
      STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP 

Page 43 of 146



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 30 of 32 

 
      By:        
Witness 
      Printed Name:       
 
 
      Printed Title:       
 
      Attest:        
Witness       (corporate seal) 
 

 
STATE OF __________________  
COUNTY OF __________________ 
 

THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT was acknowledged before me this _____ day of 
____________________________, 2021, by ________________________________, as 
___________________for STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP c/o STEWARD HEALTH CARE SYSTEM 
who personally appeared before me, [  ] is personally known to me or [  ] has produced 
____________________________________________________ as identification. 
 
___________________________________ 
Notary Public 
Name: _____________________________ 
My Commission Expires: 
 
 

Page 44 of 146



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 31 of 32 

EXHIBIT A 
 

DESCRIPTION OF LEASED PROPERTY 
 
 
 
 

Page 45 of 146



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 32 of 32 

EXHIBIT B 
 

TENANT CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN 
 

Page 46 of 146



Page 47 of 146



Page 48 of 146



Page 49 of 146



Page 50 of 146



Page 51 of 146



Page 52 of 146



Page 53 of 146



Board of 
Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Friday, September 10, 2021
Title: DOR Violation 21-001596 750 Lark Drive (Vehicle Violations .)
Section & Item: 9.A
Department: Resident Relations, DOR
Fiscal Impact: N/A
Contact: Richard Armington, Resident Relations Manager, John W Coffey, 

ICMA-CM, Community Manager
Attachments: 21-001596 750 Lark Drive
Reviewed by 
General Counsel: N/A
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Review violation and referral to General Counsel Repperger.
 

Background and Summary Information
Violation Article III, Section 3 (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) Vehicle Violations (Boats/Trailer/RV/Comm. Vehicles, Etc.) 

The first violation occurred on 7/20/2021. Nine inspections have been performed by the DOR staff on this property. Six 
photos have been taken since the first violation.  The staff signed an Affidavit of Notices, signed suspension notices and 
attached three photos. Respondents have been notified by First Class Mail and Certified Mail.

Staff recommends that the BOT refer this violation to the General Counsel Repperger for legal action, equitable or other 
appropriate action with failure to comply. If the BOT brings any such action to enforce the DOR, the charge for such 
action shall be charged to the Respondent's account and shall constitute a lien.

Page 54 of 146



BAREFOOT BAY BOARD OF TRUSTEES
BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA

    BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT
                                   Pe��oner
    Vs                                                                                                        Case no. 21-001596
 
  #0714/ 21-001596
    REYNA, MICHAEL JAMES
    750 LARK DR 
    BAREFOOT BAY, FL 32976
                                   Respondent(s),
 

 STATEMENT OF VIOLATION 
PURSUANT to the Ar�cle(s) listed below, of the Barefoot Bay Deed of Restric�ons, the undersigned DOR Enforcement Officer hereby
gives no�ce of a viola�on or viola�ons of the Deed of Restric�ons of the Barefoot Bay Recrea�on District, described herein.

SECTION(S) OF DEED OF RESTRICTION VIOLATION(S)

ARTICLE III, SECT. 3 (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) Vehicle Viola�ons(Boats/Trailer/RV/Comm. Vehicles, Etc.)
 (A) No commercial vehicle, abandoned and/or inoperable vehicle, recrea�onal vehicle, jet ski, boat, boat trailer, u�lity trailer,

camper, motor home, camping trailer, truck camper, pickup truck with camper top OR any vehicle in excess of 25 feet in overall
length as measured from the foremost projec�on thereof to the rearmost projec�on thereof, shall be parked on any lot,
driveway, carport or common area within Barefoot Bay, except for commercial vehicles parked temporarily at a lot for the
purpose of providing repair or other services to the occupant thereof, and (2) those vehicles described in subsec�on C of this
sec�on. (B) All vehicles described in subsec�on (A) of this sec�on shall be parked in vehicle storage areas provided by the
Recrea�on District or in such other areas outside Barefoot Bay as may be located by the owner. (C) 1. Notwithstanding any of the
foregoing sub-paragraphs of this sec�on, a recrea�on vehicle,boat,personal water cra�, u�lity trailer, or boat mounted on a
trailer may be parked in the driveway on a lot for purposes of cleaning, loading, unloading and preventa�ve maintenance
between the hours of 7 a.m. and 10 p.m. only. An owner may request that a vehicle be allowed to remain on a lot beyond the
�me-frame provided herein if extenua�ng circumstances exist, submi�ng a request to Recrea�on District Resident Rela�ons in
advance of said occurrence. No vehicle shall remain on a lot beyond the �me-frame provide herein without obtaining approval
from Recrea�on District Resident Rela�ons in advance. 2: A commercial vehicle is defined for the purpose of this Document as
any passenger and/or non-passenger vehicle designed, used, or maintained primarily for conduct or opera�on of a commercial
business. Only one pick-up truck, passenger van or cargo van used for commercial purposes, which is the sole means of
transporta�on of the occupant of the lot,must be kept in a garage or fully parked under a carport with visual buffering as may be
approved by ARCC. A vehicle may not have signage, equipment or materials visible when parked. (D) Motor vehicles parked at or
on a Lot shall be parked only on the concrete driveway or concrete parking area serving on such Lot. No vehicle shall be parked
on any lawn, grass or landscaped area of a Lot. (E) Kayaks and canoes may be properly stored and secured at the rear of any
residence.

LOCATION/ADDRESS WHERE VIOLATION EXISTS
 Block # 114  Lot # 122

 750 LARK DRIVE 
 BAREFOOT BAY, FL 32976 

 
DESCRIPTION OF VIOLATION(s): Trailer in driveway, must be removed.

 
DATE OF VIOLATION FIRST OBSERVED: Jul 14, 2021

 
DATE OF OWNER/PERSON IN CHARGE GIVEN NOTICE OF VIOLATION:

  via First Class
 via Cer�fied return receipt requested.

 
DATE ON/BY WHICH VIOLATION TO BE CORRECTED: September 06, 2021

 
Deed of Restric�ons Staff

September 02, 2021 

Page 55 of 146



750 Lark dr. Trailer in driveway, must be removed.
Mary Barry
Sep 02, 2021

750 Lark dr. Trailer in driveway, must be removed.
Mary Barry
Jul 30, 2021

750 Lark dr. Trailer in driveway, must be removed.
Mary Barry
Jul 26, 2021

Page 56 of 146



 
BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA
 BOARD OF TRUSTEES

 
NOTICE OF HEARING

 
 

The Respondent must correct the alleged viola�on(s) contained in the enclosed Statement of Viola�on by the date set forth therein and
contact the Deed of Restric�ons Enforcement Officer who signed the Statement of Viola�on to verify such correc�on. If the Respondent
disputes the existence of the viola�on(s) and wishes a hearing, no�ce is hereby given that a Hearing will be conducted before the Board
of Trustees at 01:00 PM on September 10, 2021 at 1225 Barefoot Boulevard, Building D&E, Barefoot Bav, Florida. The purpose of this
Hearing will be to determine whether or not the alleged viola�on(s) exist.

If the viola�on(s) described in the Statement of Viola�on are corrected an then recur, or if the viola�ons are not corrected by the
�me specified for correc�on, the case shall be presented to the Board of Trustees. No�ce is hereby given that a Hearing will be
conducted before the Barefoot Bay Board of Trustees at 01:00 PM on September 10, 2021 at 1225 Barefoot Boulevard, Building D&E,
Barefoot Bay, Florida.

The Board of Trustees will receive tes�mony and evidence at the Hearing and make Findings of Fact as are supported by the tes�mony
and evidence pertaining to ma�ers alleged in the enclosed Statement of Viola�ons. The respondent is en�tled to tes�fy and present
evidence and witnesses at the Hearing, or may be represented by an a�orney. If the property is found to be in viola�on, all social,
family, and golf memberships affiliated with the property will be automa�cally suspended.The Board of Trustees shall have the
authority to bring an ac�on for injunc�ve or other appropriate legal or equitable relief in a court of competent jurisdic�on in Brevard
County, Florida to remedy the viola�on. If the Board of Trustees brings any such legal ac�on, the Board of Trustees shall be en�tled to
an award of A�orney's fees and court costs incident to bringing such ac�on.

IF ANY INDIVIDUAL WISHES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER
CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING, A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDING WILL BE REQUIRED, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE
TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS BASED SUCH PERSON MUST PROVIDE A COURT REPORTER, COURT
STENOGRAPHER OR OTHER METHOD ACCEPTABLE TO A COURT OF LAW TO PROVIDE FOR SUCH VERBATIM RECORD; THE DISTRICT
DOES NOT PROVIDE SUCH RECORD (FS 286.0105).

THIS IS A PUBLIC MEETING. ALL INTERESTED PARTIES MAY ATTEND. THE FACILITY WHEREIN THIS PUBLIC MEETING WILL BE HELD IS
ACCESSIBLE TO THE PHYSICALLY HANDICAPPED. IN ACCORDANCE WITH AMERICAN DISABILITIES ACT, PERSONS NEEDING ASSISTANCE
TO PARTICIPATE IN ANY OF THESE PROCEEDINGS SHOULD CONTACT THE DEED OF RESTRICTIONS ENFORCEMENT OFFICE AT 772-664-
3141.

September 02, 2021 
Board of Trustees/Deed of Restric�ons STAFF

[DOCUMENT]
[DOC_DESCRIPTION]

Page 57 of 146



BAREFOOT BAY BOARD OF TRUSTEES
BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA

 
    BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT
                                   Pe��oner
    Vs                                                                                                                     Case no. 21-001596
 
    #0714 / 21-001596
    REYNA, MICHAEL JAMES,
    750 LARK DR 
    BAREFOOT BAY, FL 32976
                                   Respondent(s),

 RE: 750 LARK DRIVE 
Barefoot Bay, FL 32976

 
AFFIDAVIT OF NOTICES

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF BREVARD

     BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared, Deed of Restric�ons Enforcement Officer Mary Barry for the Barefoot
Bay Recrea�on District, who a�er being duly sworn deposes and says:

1. That on or about the              day of                          20    , a Statement of Viola�ons and a No�ce of Hearing was mailed to the
respondent at the above address by First Class mail.

 
2. That on or about the              day of                          20    , a Statement of Viola�ons and a No�ce of Hearing was mailed to the

above respondent by Cer�fied mail, return receipt requested, a copy of which is a�ached hereto.
 

3. That on or about the              day of                          20    , a Statement of Viola�ons and a No�ce of Hearing was Posted at the
above referenced address a copy of which is a�ached hereto.

 
4. That on or about the              day of                          20    , a Statement of Viola�ons and a No�ce of Hearing was emailed to the

Mortgage Servicer for above referenced address, a copy of which is a�ached hereto.

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT.
          Dated this              day of                          20      .

_________________________________________
Mary Barry, DOR Inspector

 
The Foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on              day of                          20      by Mary Barry, who is personally known
to me and did take an oath.
 

 

_________________________________________
Notary Public

State of Florida at Large

Page 58 of 146



Board of 
Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Friday, September 10, 2021
Title: DOR Violation 21-001867 750 Lark Drive (Lawn and Landscape)
Section & Item: 9.B
Department: Resident Relations, DOR
Fiscal Impact: N/A
Contact: Richard Armington, Resident Relations Manager, John W Coffey, 

ICMA-CM, Community Manager
Attachments: 21-001867 750 Lark Drive
Reviewed by General 
Counsel: N/A
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Review violation and referral to General Counsel Repperger 
 

Background and Summary Information
Violation Article III, Section 2 (A) (D) Lawn and Landscape

The first violation occurred on 9/2/2021. One inspection and one photo have been done. This violation has not been 
brought before the Violation Committee. The staff signed an Affidavit of Notice and attached a photo. Respondents 
have been notified by First Class Mail and Certified Mail.

Staff recommends that the BOT refer this violation to General Counsel Repperger for legal action, equitable or other 
appropriate action with failure to comply. If the BOT brings any such action to enforce the DOR, the charge for such 
action shall be charged to the Respondent's account and constitute a lien.

Page 59 of 146



BAREFOOT BAY BOARD OF TRUSTEES
BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA

    BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT
                                   Pe��oner
    Vs                                                                                                        Case no. 21-001867
 
  #714/ 21-001867
    REYNA, MICHAEL JAMES
    750 LARK DR 
    BAREFOOT BAY, FL 32976
                                   Respondent(s),
 

 STATEMENT OF VIOLATION 
PURSUANT to the Ar�cle(s) listed below, of the Barefoot Bay Deed of Restric�ons, the undersigned DOR Enforcement Officer hereby
gives no�ce of a viola�on or viola�ons of the Deed of Restric�ons of the Barefoot Bay Recrea�on District, described herein.

SECTION(S) OF DEED OF RESTRICTION VIOLATION(S)

ARTICLE III, SECT. 2 (A) (D) Lawn and Landscape Recurring Maintenance Condi�on of Prop. (A)(D) Lawn & Landscape (Recurring
Mtnc.)

 (A) The lawn and landscaped areas (including all trees, shrubs, and other vegeta�on) of each lot shall not be neglected and shall
be regularly pruned and maintained at the expense of the Owner or Resident of such lot. The lawn and landscaped areas shall be
maintained free from all underbrush, excessive overgrowth, all rubbish, and weeds and grass in excess of six inches in height.
"Excessive overgrowth" shall mean any vegeta�on that is not regularly pruned in accordance with common care for such
vegeta�on, or presents an inherent danger in either height,placement or as restricted in ARCC Guidelines.Dead vegeta�on on
any lot is required to be promptly removed. 

 (D) In the event that any lawn, landscaped areas, driveway, carport or home is not maintained in compliance with the
requirements of Sec�on 2, Sec�on 10, or Sec�on 11 of Ar�cle III, the Recrea�on District shall have the right to enter upon the lot
and take any ac�on reasonably necessary to cause the home and lot to come into compliance with the requirement of
subsec�ons (A), (B), (C) of Sec�on 2, Sec�on 10, or Sec�on 11 of Ar�cle III. The expense of such ac�on shall be billed by the
Recrea�on District to the owner, shall be a personal obliga�on of the owner, and shall be shall be paid by the owner within thirty
days a�er the owner is provided with wri�en no�ce of such expenses. If payment is not made within the said thirty day period,
the expense in ques�on shall become a lien upon the said lot un�l paid, which lien shall have priority as of the date of recording
of a no�ce thereof in the public records of Brevard county; provided, however, such lien shall not be superior to the lien for
county taxes of the lien for the Recrea�on District's assessments and maintenance fees. The sum so due to the Recrea�on
District may be collected by either an ac�on of law, or the Recrea�on District shall have the right at its discre�on to proceed to
foreclose the above -described lien. In the event of such li�ga�on, the Recrea�on District shall have the right to recover the costs
thereof including a reasonable a�orney's fee.

LOCATION/ADDRESS WHERE VIOLATION EXISTS
 Block # 114  Lot # 122

 750 LARK DRIVE 
 BAREFOOT BAY, FL 32976 

 
DESCRIPTION OF VIOLATION(s): Lawn and landscape: high grass/weeds

 
DATE OF VIOLATION FIRST OBSERVED: Sep 02, 2021

 
DATE OF OWNER/PERSON IN CHARGE GIVEN NOTICE OF VIOLATION:

 September 02, 2021 via First Class
 September 02, 2021 via Cer�fied return receipt requested.

 
DATE ON/BY WHICH VIOLATION TO BE CORRECTED: September 06, 2021

 
Deed of Restric�ons Staff

September 02, 2021 

Page 60 of 146



750 Lark Dr. Lawn and landscape: high grass/weeds
Mary Barry
Sep 02, 2021

Page 61 of 146



 
BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA
 BOARD OF TRUSTEES

 
NOTICE OF HEARING

 
 

The Respondent must correct the alleged viola�on(s) contained in the enclosed Statement of Viola�on by the date set forth therein and
contact the Deed of Restric�ons Enforcement Officer who signed the Statement of Viola�on to verify such correc�on. If the Respondent
disputes the existence of the viola�on(s) and wishes a hearing, no�ce is hereby given that a Hearing will be conducted before the Board
of Trustees at 01:00 PM on September 10, 2021 at 1225 Barefoot Boulevard, Building D&E, Barefoot Bav, Florida. The purpose of this
Hearing will be to determine whether or not the alleged viola�on(s) exist.

If the viola�on(s) described in the Statement of Viola�on are corrected an then recur, or if the viola�ons are not corrected by the
�me specified for correc�on, the case shall be presented to the Board of Trustees. No�ce is hereby given that a Hearing will be
conducted before the Barefoot Bay Board of Trustees at 01:00 PM on September 10, 2021 at 1225 Barefoot Boulevard, Building D&E,
Barefoot Bay, Florida.

The Board of Trustees will receive tes�mony and evidence at the Hearing and make Findings of Fact as are supported by the tes�mony
and evidence pertaining to ma�ers alleged in the enclosed Statement of Viola�ons. The respondent is en�tled to tes�fy and present
evidence and witnesses at the Hearing, or may be represented by an a�orney. If the property is found to be in viola�on, all social,
family, and golf memberships affiliated with the property will be automa�cally suspended.The Board of Trustees shall have the
authority to bring an ac�on for injunc�ve or other appropriate legal or equitable relief in a court of competent jurisdic�on in Brevard
County, Florida to remedy the viola�on. If the Board of Trustees brings any such legal ac�on, the Board of Trustees shall be en�tled to
an award of A�orney's fees and court costs incident to bringing such ac�on.

IF ANY INDIVIDUAL WISHES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER
CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING, A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDING WILL BE REQUIRED, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE
TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS BASED SUCH PERSON MUST PROVIDE A COURT REPORTER, COURT
STENOGRAPHER OR OTHER METHOD ACCEPTABLE TO A COURT OF LAW TO PROVIDE FOR SUCH VERBATIM RECORD; THE DISTRICT
DOES NOT PROVIDE SUCH RECORD (FS 286.0105).

THIS IS A PUBLIC MEETING. ALL INTERESTED PARTIES MAY ATTEND. THE FACILITY WHEREIN THIS PUBLIC MEETING WILL BE HELD IS
ACCESSIBLE TO THE PHYSICALLY HANDICAPPED. IN ACCORDANCE WITH AMERICAN DISABILITIES ACT, PERSONS NEEDING ASSISTANCE
TO PARTICIPATE IN ANY OF THESE PROCEEDINGS SHOULD CONTACT THE DEED OF RESTRICTIONS ENFORCEMENT OFFICE AT 772-664-
3141.

September 02, 2021 
Board of Trustees/Deed of Restric�ons STAFF

Page 62 of 146



BAREFOOT BAY BOARD OF TRUSTEES
BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA

 
    BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT
                                   Pe��oner
    Vs                                                                                                                     Case no. 21-001867
 
    #714 / 21-001867
    REYNA, MICHAEL JAMES,
    750 LARK DR 
    BAREFOOT BAY, FL 32976
                                   Respondent(s),

 RE: 750 LARK DRIVE 
Barefoot Bay, FL 32976

 
AFFIDAVIT OF NOTICES

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF BREVARD

     BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared, Deed of Restric�ons Enforcement Officer Mary Barry for the Barefoot
Bay Recrea�on District, who a�er being duly sworn deposes and says:

1. That on or about the              day of                          20    , a Statement of Viola�ons and a No�ce of Hearing was mailed to the
respondent at the above address by First Class mail.

 
2. That on or about the              day of                          20    , a Statement of Viola�ons and a No�ce of Hearing was mailed to the

above respondent by Cer�fied mail, return receipt requested, a copy of which is a�ached hereto.
 

3. That on or about the              day of                          20    , a Statement of Viola�ons and a No�ce of Hearing was Posted at the
above referenced address a copy of which is a�ached hereto.

 
4. That on or about the              day of                          20    , a Statement of Viola�ons and a No�ce of Hearing was emailed to the

Mortgage Servicer for above referenced address, a copy of which is a�ached hereto.

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT.
          Dated this              day of                          20      .

_________________________________________
Mary Barry, DOR Inspector

 
The Foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on              day of                          20      by Mary Barry, who is personally known
to me and did take an oath.
 

 

_________________________________________
Notary Public

State of Florida at Large

Page 63 of 146



Board of 
Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Friday, September 10, 2021
Title: DOR Violation 21-001516 750 Lark Drive (Condition of 

Property (C) Unauthorized items)
Section & Item: 9.C
Department: Resident Relations, DOR
Fiscal Impact: N/A
Contact: Richard Armington, Resident Relations Manager
Attachments: 21-001516 750 Lark Drive
Reviewed by General 
Counsel: N/A
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Review violation and referral to General Counsel Repperger.
 

Background and Summary Information
Violation Article III, Section 2 (C) (D) Condition of Property (C) Unauthorized items

The first violation occurred on 7/19/2021.  DOR staff has inspected the property six inspections and 22 photos have 
been taken since the first violation. The case was found in violation on 8/27/2021 by the Violation Committee. The staff 
signed an Affidavit of Notices and attached four photos. The respondent has been notified by First Class Mail and 
Certified Mail.

Staff recommends that the BOT refer this violation to General Counsel Repperger for legal action, equitable or other 
appropriate action with failure to comply. If the BOT brings any such action to enforce the DOR, the charge for such 
actions shall be charged to the Respondent's account and shall constitute a lien.

Page 64 of 146



BAREFOOT BAY BOARD OF TRUSTEES
BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

    BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT
                                   Pe��oner
    Vs                                                                                                        Case no. 21-001516
 
  #0714/ 21-001516
    REYNA, MICHAEL JAMES
    750 LARK DR 
    BAREFOOT BAY, FL 32976
                                   Respondent(s),
 

 STATEMENT OF VIOLATION
PURSUANT to the Ar�cle(s) listed below, of the Barefoot Bay Deed of Restric�ons, the undersigned DOR Enforcement Officer hereby
gives no�ce of a viola�on or viola�ons of the Deed of Restric�ons of the Barefoot Bay Recrea�on District, described herein.

SECTION(S) OF DEED OF RESTRICTION VIOLATION(S)

ARTICLE III, SECT. 2 (C) (D) Condi�on of Prop. (C) Unauthorized items
 (C) The lawn, landscaped areas, driveways and carports on each lot shall be kept free of all items of personal property except for

customary outdoor items such as exterior pa�o or porch furniture, golf carts, vehicles, and barbecue grills. The intent of this
requirement is to prohibit the accumula�on and/or storage of items such as indoor furniture, automo�ve parts, cartons, boxes,
debris and similar property which causes an unsightly appearance or nuisance if le� on or about the exterior of a home. 

 (D) In the event that any lawn, landscaped areas, driveway, carport or home is not maintained in compliance with the
requirements of Sec�on 2, Sec�on 10, or Sec�on 11 of Ar�cle III, the Recrea�on District shall have the right to enter upon the lot
and take any ac�on reasonably necessary to cause the home and lot to come into compliance with the requirement of
subsec�ons (A), (B), (C) of Sec�on 2, Sec�on 10, or Sec�on 11 of Ar�cle III. The expense of such ac�on shall be billed by the
Recrea�on District to the owner, shall be a personal obliga�on of the owner, and shall be shall be paid by the owner within thirty
days a�er the owner is provided with wri�en no�ce of such expenses. If payment is not made within the said thirty day period,
the expense in ques�on shall become a lien upon the said lot un�l paid, which lien shall have priority as of the date of recording
of a no�ce thereof in the public records of Brevard county; provided, however, such lien shall not be superior to the lien for
county taxes of the lien for the Recrea�on District's assessments and maintenance fees. The sum so due to the Recrea�on
District may be collected by either an ac�on of law, or the Recrea�on District shall have the right at its discre�on to proceed to
foreclose the above -described lien. In the event of such li�ga�on, the Recrea�on District shall have the right to recover the costs
thereof including a reasonable a�orney's fee.

LOCATION/ADDRESS WHERE VIOLATION EXISTS
 Block # 114  Lot # 122

 750 LARK DRIVE 
 BAREFOOT BAY, FL 32976 

 
DESCRIPTION OF VIOLATION(s): Unapproved items / Debris

 
DATE OF VIOLATION FIRST OBSERVED: Jul 07, 2021

 
DATE OF OWNER/PERSON IN CHARGE GIVEN NOTICE OF VIOLATION:

 August 16, 2021 via First Class
 August 16, 2021 via Cer�fied return receipt requested.

 
DATE ON/BY WHICH VIOLATION TO BE CORRECTED: 9/6/2021

 
Deed of Res�c�ons Staff 

September 02, 2021 

Page 65 of 146



750 Lark Dr. Unapproved items / Debris
Sep 02, 2021

750 Lark Dr. Unapproved items / Debris
Aug 24, 2021

750 Lark Dr. Unapproved items / Debris
Aug 17, 2021

Page 66 of 146



750 Lark Dr. Posted note
Aug 16, 2021

Page 67 of 146



 
BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA
 NOTICE OF HEARING

OF
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

 
 

No�ce is hereby given that a Hearing will be conducted before the Barefoot Bay Board of Trustees at 1:oo PM on 9/10/2021 at 1225
Barefoot Boulevard, Building D&E, Barefoot Bay, Florida. 

The purpose of this Hearing will be to consider the Recommended Order of the Viola�ons Commi�ee to the Board of Trustees for your
Case. 

The Board shall not conduct a full de novo quasi-judicial hearing on the viola�on, but shall consider the Finding of Fact and
Recommended Order issued by the Viola�ons Commi�ee. The owner may not present new or addi�onal evidence, but shall be given
an opportunity to be heard. If the Board of Trustees concurs with the Viola�on Commi�ee that a viola�on has been established, the
Board of Trustees shall have the authority to bring an ac�on for injunc�ve or other appropriate legal or equitable relief in a court of
competent jurisdic�on in Brevard County, Florida to remedy the viola�on. If the Board of Trustees brings any such legal ac�on to
enforce the Deed of Restric�ons and is deemed to be the prevailing party in such ac�on, the Board of Trustees shall be en�tled to an
award of a�orney's fees and court costs incident to bringing such ac�on. 

IF ANY INDIVIDUAL WISHES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER
CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING, A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDING WILL BE REQUIRED, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE
TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS BASED SUCH PERSON MUST PROVIDE A COURT REPORTER, COURT
STENOGRAPHER OR OTHER METHOD ACCEPTABLE TO A COURT OF LAW TO PROVIDE FOR SUCH VERBATIM RECORD; THE DISTRICT
DOES NOT PROVIDE SUCH RECORD (FS 286.0105).

THIS IS A PUBLIC MEETING. ALL INTERESTED PARTIES MAY ATTEND. THE FACILITY WHEREIN THIS PUBLIC MEETING WILL BE HELD IS
ACCESSIBLE TO THE PHYSICALLY HANDICAPPED. IN ACCORDANCE WITH AMERICAN DISABILITIES ACT, PERSONS NEEDING ASSISTANCE
TO PARTICIPATE IN ANY OF THESE PROCEEDINGS SHOULD CONTACT THE DEED OF RESTRICTIONS ENFORCEMENT OFFICE AT 772-664-
3141.

September 02, 2021 
Deed of Restric�ons STAFF

Page 68 of 146



BAREFOOT BAY BOARD OF TRUSTEES
BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA

 
    BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT
                                   Pe��oner
    Vs                                                                                                                     Case no. 21-001516
 
    #0714 / 21-001516
    REYNA, MICHAEL JAMES,
    750 LARK DR 
    BAREFOOT BAY, FL 32976
                                   Respondent(s),

 RE: 750 LARK DRIVE 
Barefoot Bay, FL 32976

 
AFFIDAVIT OF NOTICES

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF BREVARD

     BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared, Deed of Restric�ons Enforcement Officer Mary Barry for the Barefoot
Bay Recrea�on District, who a�er being duly sworn deposes and says:

1. That on or about the              day of                          20    , a Statement of Viola�ons and a No�ce of Hearing was mailed to the
respondent at the above address by First Class mail.

 
2. That on or about the              day of                          20    , a Statement of Viola�ons and a No�ce of Hearing was mailed to the

above respondent by Cer�fied mail, return receipt requested, a copy of which is a�ached hereto.
 

3. That on or about the              day of                          20    , a Statement of Viola�ons and a No�ce of Hearing was Posted at the
above referenced address a copy of which is a�ached hereto.

 
4. That on or about the              day of                          20    , a Statement of Viola�ons and a No�ce of Hearing was emailed to the

Mortgage Servicer for above referenced address, a copy of which is a�ached hereto.

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT.
          Dated this              day of                          20      .

_________________________________________
Mary Barry, DOR Inspector

 
The Foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on              day of                          20      by Mary Barry, who is personally known
to me and did take an oath.
 

 

_________________________________________
Notary Public

State of Florida at Large

Page 69 of 146



Board of 
Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Friday, September 10, 2021
Title: “Color Our World Cancer Free” Request for Waiver of Guest 

Passes for Participants to Access Pavilion
Section & Item: 9.D
Department: Adminstration, District Clerk
Fiscal Impact: N/A
Contact: John W Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
Attachments: Request email
Reviewed by 
General Counsel: N/A
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Waiver of guest pass requirement for Color Our World Cancer Free participants to access the Pavilion behind Building A 
from 8am to Noon on October 16, 2021 event.
 

Background and Summary Information
Color Our World Cancer Free is the annual charity walk benefiting the American Cancer Society. Inaugurated in 2019, 
money is raised through sponsorships of individuals and teams who walk around the TuTu Trail festooned in colorful 
attire. The organizing committee wishes to use the Pavilion as a staging and celebration area from 8am till Noon on 
October 16, 2021. Guest passes are normally required for individuals without homeowner/renter badges seeking to 
access the area.
 
To encourage participation by non-residents, the organizing committee requests the BOT waive the guest pass 
requirement for the duration of the event. Representatives of the committee will be at the October 26th BOT meeting 
to publicly thank the BOT for their support and announce to the community the results of the event.
 
Staff recommends the BOT waive the guest pass requirement at Pool #1 area for Color Our World Cancer Free 
participants on October 16, 2021 from 8am to Noon so they can access the Pavilion area.
 

Page 70 of 146



1

John Coffey

From: John Coffey
Sent: Tuesday, August 24, 2021 3:12 PM
To: Elizabeth Taylor
Cc: Charles Henley
Subject: RE: Color Our World Cancer Free

Lizzann, 
 
Consider everything done.  Request for pavilion access will be on September 10th BOT agenda. Proclamation will be on 
October 8th meeting and time for your presentation will be on the October 26th meeting. I might not be at the October 
26th meeting (might be taking vacation…still undecided) but if I am not there my right hand man Charles Henley will be 
there in my place making sure the show runs smoothly…. 
 
Thank you for your kind words about Harley.  He was my best friend…. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
  

John  
  
 
  
PUBLIC RECORDS NOTICE: Barefoot Bay Recreation District (BBRD) is governed by the State of Florida public records law. This means that the information BBRD 
receives online including your e‐mail address might be disclosed to any person making a public records request. If you have any question about the Florida public 
records law refer to Chapter 119 Florida Statutes. Under Florida law, e‐mail addresses are public records. If you do not want your e‐mail address released in response 
to a public‐records request, do not send electronic mail to this entity. Instead, contact this office by phone or in writing. 
 
 
 
 
From: Elizabeth Taylor <taylor.lizzann@gmail.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, August 24, 2021 2:56 PM 
To: John Coffey <jcoffey@bbrd.org> 
Subject: Color Our World Cancer Free 
 
Good afternoon, John! 
 
As you know, the cancer walk is scheduled for October 16th.  I would like to request three items for the BOT 
agenda.  First, I would like to ask that participants be allowed free access to the pavilion area that morning 8am to 
noon.  Although most will probably be bay residents, I anticipate a good many guests.  I know BOT permission is 
required. 
 
Second, would the BOT make a proclamation honoring the cancer fighting effort of that day.  . 
 
And, thirdly, I would like to make a public presentation of the final distribution to the American Cancer Society at the last
BOT meeting in October which I believe is October 26th.  We will have volunteers festooned in their t‐shirts to celebrate 
at each meeting.l 
 

Page 71 of 146



2

Lastly, I was sorry to read that Harley has crossed over the rainbow bridge.   I big hole is left in our lives when a part of 
the family leaves us. We all enjoyed his contributions to the Bay,  God bless. 
 
Thanks for all you do in the Bay, 
Lizzann 
 
 
  

Page 72 of 146



Board of 
Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Friday, September 10, 2021
Title: Restroom Trailer by Pickle Ball/Tennis Courts Award of Contract
Section & Item: 9.E
Department: R&M/Capital Projects
Fiscal Impact: Estimated $60,950.00 ($57,970 for trailer and estimated $2,980 

for delivery) (FY21 Budget of $50,000)
Contact: Matt Goetz, Property Services Manager, John W Coffey, ICMA-

CM, Community Manager
Attachments: Portable Restroom Trailers LLC bid, Montondo Trailer bid
Reviewed by 
General Counsel: N/A
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Award of contract for procurement of a restroom trailer at the Pickle Ball/Tennis Courts to replace the current porta-
potties.
 

Background and Summary Information
The FY21 Approved Budget contains $50,000.00 for the acquisition and installation of a restroom trailer to replace the 
porta-potties near the Pickle Ball/Tennis Courts. Staff solicited the following bids for a three-station restroom trailer 
(one ADA accessible and two regular) and a hydraulic drop wheel system:
 
$57,970.00 Portable Restroom Trailer LLC (est. $2,980.00 delivery fee)
$54,995.00 Montondo Trailer LLC (est. $2,765.00 delivery fee)
 
During the bid solicitation process staff traveled to North Carolina to inspect the quality of the unit available from 
Portable Restroom Trailers LLC. Staff was not able to inspect the Montondo Trailer LLC unit as the business is located in 
Buffalo, NY.
 
Due to the ease of entry into the non-handicap stations (one low step) and configuration of the trailer, staff believes the 
Portable Restroom Trailer LLC unit is the best fit for BBRD. The reader should note, staff will need to pour a concrete 
extension to the sidewalk south of the tennis courts to ensure ADA accessibility and regular pumping of the waste tank 
will be required as the unit will not be connected to the Brevard County sanitary sewer system.
 
Lastly, staff plans on minimal movement of the trailer through the year. Such movements will be limited to large gathers 
(i.e., Barefoot by the Lake Festival) and during approaching tropical events to limit potential damage from wind born 
debris and/or tree limb breakage.
 
Lastly, sufficient fund balance is available for the budget overage.
 
Hence, staff recommends the BOT award contract to Portable Restroom Trailers LLC in the amount of $57,970.00 plus 
delivery for a three station (one handicap and two regular) hydraulic drop restroom trailer and instruct staff to prepare 
a budget amendment from fund balance to cover the overage.
 

Page 73 of 146



Available to Order

$57,970.00

Financing as low as $5,899.82 per month for QBO*

*Quali�ed Buyers Only

ADA Restroom Trailer +2 Station | Oahu Series –

HC 17'

SKU# CHS337511

Small 2 Toilets 1 ADA Toilets 0 Urinals Up to 250 Guests

          Barefoot Bay Recreation
                 Purchase Quote

ADA Restroom Trailer + 2 Station - Oahu Series - 
HC 17' - Full Heat

                    Barefoot Bay Recreation
                          Purchase Quote
                               8/31/21

**Quote good for 10 days; Subject to availability

Page 74 of 146



Essential Upgrade Package

Includes: Smarter Restroom App, Stereo, & Spare Tire with Mount + $2,580.00

Upgrades

Non-Skid Flooring - Regular + $2,680.00

Diamond Plate Rock Guard + $480.00

Spare Tire Mounted + $480.00

Baby Changing Station + $875.00

Stereo - AMP with 2 Speakers & USB/SD Card Player + $680.00

Washdown Package + $1,480.00

Electric Hand Dryer (3 Suites) + $950.00

Direct to Sewer - Add Full Flush Toilets - 2 Toilets + $950.00

Hands Free Paper Towel Dispenser - 3 Suites + $540.00

Stainless Steel Wainscoting + $2,580.00

Generator Cage/Mount - Generator not included + $4,680.00

Solar Package + $1,380.00

Pintle Hitch + $200.00

Electric Hand Dryer (3 Suites) + $2,850.00

Upgrade Heat Package

Full Heat +$1,480.00

Qty

1

Overview

ADA Compliant 3 Sinks

2,850.00

 4 Season Upgrade + $4,980.00

Freight-Approximate to zip 32976: $2,980.00

*Available to Order *Due to industry-wide fluctuations in raw material costs, 
units to be ordered may be subject to an additional surcharge. 

*6-8 month lead time.

Page 75 of 146

javascript:;


Easy-to-Use ADA Restroom Trailers for

Municipalities, Schools, and Parks

The ADA Portable Restrooms Trailer +2 Station | Oahu Series is perfect for any venue in

which ADA accessibility is a must. This climate-controlled unit features 2 standard

unisex restrooms, each with pedal �ush toilets, cabinet sink, and shatterproof mirror.

The ADA Portable Restrooms Trailer +2 Station also contains one unisex ADA suite with

ADA toilet, sink, shatterproof mirror, and grab rails. The ADA suite features a wide entry

door and ADA-compliant ramp and welcomes each guest with a One Button execution

system that smoothly and quietly lowers the trailer to the ground. Abundant porch

lighting and vinyl �ooring to ensure a safe entry/exit to each private suite, no matter

what time of day or night.

Smarter Restrooms App - An interactive tool allowing portable restroom rentals �eet

owners to monitor operational systems for their trailer(s) from any smartphone, tablet,

or computer. You can easily maintain systems operations with the ability to monitor

waste and fresh water tank levels, power, and interior climate control.

Photos are used to show a choice of white or grey FRP walls and may not be an actual

representation of the unit.  Please see the layout for actual representation.

Financing available with deposit and approved credit.

Call us today for more information at 1-866-258-6787

Features/Speci�cations

Model Year: Newest Model

Stations: 3

Standard Toilets: 2

ADA Toilets: 1

Sinks: 3

Laundry: No

Fresh Water Tank (Gallons): 105

Waste Tank (Gallons): 300

Page 76 of 146

https://portablerestroomstrailers.wistia.com/medias/rnzlls5eyq
javascript:;


Floor Plan

Water Heater: Yes

Mechanics Room: Yes

Box Length: 17'

Box Width: 6'

A/C Unit Type (BTU): 13.5

A/C Unit Count: 1

Water Supply: City Water- Pressurized Water System- Garden Hose

Power Supply/Cords: (1-5) 30 Amp Cords

Motion Sensor Step Lights: No

Warranty Information: This new unit has a 5-year limited trailer manufacturer

warranty on the trailer frame and axles and a 2-year limited warranty on the

trailer as a whole. Sealant, electrical components, hydraulics, hoses, wall

coverings, trim and paint are warranted for 1 year, and 1-3 year warranty on

Individual appliances. Registration details are provided by their individual

appliance manufacturers and are located in the component binder located in

the mechanics room on the backside of the trailer.

�Thank you for the opportunity... 

Vanessa Smith
National Accounts Specialist - �Portable Restroom Trailers, LLC
Office: (877) 600-TOILETS [8645]
Direct/Text: (716) 640-4209
Email: vanessa@portablerestroomtrailers.com
www.portablerestroomtrailers.com

Page 77 of 146

javascript:;


 

 

 
 

2021– Handicap Accessible Hydraulic Drop 
3 Station Restroom Trailer  

 

 

 

Prepared For: 
Matt Goetz 
 
 
 

Prepared By: 
Montondo Trailer 

 August 30th, 20201 
Daniel Pfohl 

716-308-0829 
daniel@montondotrailer.com 

 

Page 78 of 146

mailto:daniel@montondotrailer.com


 

                                                       Montondo Trailer LLC    Buffalo NY  

 
 
8/30/2021 
 
 
 
Matt, 

Thank you very much for the opportunity to work with you and your group to 
provide a portable Restroom solution. We at Montondo Trailer take tremendous 
pride in what we do and would welcome you to join our growing list of satisfied 
clients.  

All trailers built by Montondo Trailer are designed for ease of use, cleaning, 
maintenance, and repairs. Using standard commercial building principles, we 
have incorporated access to all plumbing and systems. Interior walls are metal 
framed and insulated (2’ x 4’ - 16” O.C.) with smooth FRP, PEX supply lines and 
each seam is sealed to create a moisture resistant barrier. Our waste/greywater 
tanks are rotationally molded poly, designed for ease of cleaning and longevity. 
The focus, on all of our builds and designs, is on providing a high quality product 
made to last, which will protect our clients investments.  

As each unit is custom built, we have to opportunity to fine tune and adjust the 
project should the need arise. We offer a wide variety of designs and 
configurations and will work with you to provide the best possible solution for 
each unique application.  

We look forward to working with you and appreciate any and all feedback along 
the way. 

 
Sincerely, 
 
Daniel Pfohl 
Montondo Trailer, LLC 
Daniel@montondotrailer.com 
www.montondotrailer.com 
1-800-680-2902 office     716-308-0829 Cell  
 

            

 
 
 

Page 79 of 146



 

                                                       Montondo Trailer LLC    Buffalo NY  

 
 

16’ x 8’ - Handicap Accessible Hydraulic Drop 3 
Station Restroom Trailer  

 

 
Key Features: 
• Standard Restrooms Features: Dometic China Bowl Toilet, Shatter Proof Mirror, Sink, 

Paper Towel and Soap Dispenser, and Bathroom Vent 
• Handicap Room:  Handicap Sink, Handicap Toilet, Paper Towel and Soap Dispenser, 

Mirror, Hand Rails and Vent 
  
  
•  Aluminum Handicap Ramp 
  
  
  
•  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 2 

Page 80 of 146



 

                                                       Montondo Trailer LLC    Buffalo NY  

 
Purchase Agreement  

16’ x 8’ – Handicap Accessible Hydraulic Drop 3 
Station Restroom Trailer  

________________________________________________________________  
$54,995 Per Unit 

 
***Financing Available*** 

Standard Trailer Features: White Gel Coat Exterior, Marine grade sub floor 
system, 2 5/16 Ball Hitch, LED entrance lights, Mechanics Room, Electric 

Runaway Breaks, DOT LED lighting, 3” Banjo Clean out Valve,¾ freshwater 
connection, Exterior power connection (to client spec),Heavy Duty Door 

Closures, Lockable doors knobs, Diamond Plate Rock Guard front of Trailer 
 

Shipping Terms: To be determined at $2.25 per mile from Buffalo NY 

Initial: _____ 

 

Standard Terms:  50% payment down to start the order. Balance due 10 business days prior to delivery. 

 

Any Payment by the Customer indicates the Customer agrees to our Terms and Conditions whether its 

signed or not. Cancellation of order, post deposit, will be subject to a 50% restocking fee based on gross 

sale price. 

 

Items are the sole property of Montondo Trailer until full payment is made and must be turned over if 

payment isn't made within 90 days of delivery. 

 

I the undersigned would like to purchase the items above in agreement with 
Montondo Trailer LLC terms and conditions 
 
 

Signature:______________________________ 
 
  
Print Name: ____________________________ 
 
 
Date:_____________ 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Page 81 of 146



 

                                                       Montondo Trailer LLC    Buffalo NY  

 
Sample Commercial Builds 
 

 
 

 
REFERENCES: 
Brian Griffin, Union County Sheriffs 704-506-6841 
Dan Roy, Roys Barn 406-580-3463 
Dr Joseph Wilson 919-698-2149 
Alvin Migues, Salvation Army 682-300-2415 
AFFILIATIONS: 
NATM – National Association of trailer manufacturers 
PSAI – Portable Sanitation Association International 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 82 of 146



 

                                                       Montondo Trailer LLC    Buffalo NY  

 
Warranty 

MONTONDO TRAILER PARTS AND COMPONENTS 
WARRANTY                                                                                                                              

 
5 yr. on the Trailer frame that covers defects in material and workmanship. That does not include 
warranties on the following products used to manufacture the trailer. Tires, wheels, axles and 
jacks. These items are warranted by their Mfg.  
MT reserves the right on a final decision on whether (after inspection) it is decided the trailer has 
been misused.  
All warranties voided if it is determined by Montondo Trailer that damage to the unit was caused 
by transportation of the trailer with waste or water in either of the onboard holding tanks. 
Product warranties for installed Restroom components: 
• AC limited 2 yr. on all major components. 
• Lippert Axle- 1yr- 6yrs based on unit used 
• Dometic toilets- 1yr 
• Sloan Waterless urinals- 1yr 
• Water pumps- 1yr 
• See Level tank monitor- 1yr 
• Interior or exterior LED – 1yr (unless damaged) 
• Custom made cabinets- no warranty (workmanship issues will be handled on a ICB) 
• Timed faucets- 1 yr. limited 
• Pre-made cabinets- ICB based mfg. 
• Wall Heater- Limited 1 yr. 
• Stall Partitions: Mfg. guarantees its powder coated steel units, properly maintained, against 
corrosion or Discoloration for 3 years from the date of receipt by the customer. If materials are 
found defective during that period or the reasons listed above, the material will be replaced free of 
charge. No credits or allowances will be issued for any labor or expenses relating to the 
replacement of components covered under the warranty plan. 

• Fresh water vertical storage tank- 3 yr. 

• Tires and Wheels & Jacks- TBD based on the tires used and size 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 83 of 146



 

                                                       Montondo Trailer LLC    Buffalo NY  

 

 
 

WIRING INSTRUCTIONS:

Evans Bank  
One Grimsby Drive  
Hamburg NY 14075 

 
BANK ABA # 022310121 

Account # 10162410 
 
 

ACCOUNT NAME: 
 

 Montondo Trailer LLC 
1800 Broadway St. 4C 
Buffalo NY 14212-2001 

 
 

For incoming USD Foreign wires: 
BANK SWIFT BIC: EVANUS33 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 84 of 146



 

                                                       Montondo Trailer LLC    Buffalo NY  

 
 

Buy Back Program 
 
 
Qualifications:  
 
1. The restroom trailer must be purchased new from Montondo 
Trailer.  
2. The restroom trailer must be owned by the purchaser for one full 
year from the date of initial purchase.  
3. Montondo Trailer must be able to inspect the trailer within two 
months following the 1st anniversary of purchase.  
4. You must contact us in month 12 from the purchase date & alert us 
that you wish to be eligible for the buyback policy.  
5. Upon inspection Montondo Trailer will buyback the restroom trailer 
from you for up to 80%, of the original purchase price. Owner must be 
able to provide proof at inspection that the unit is completely 
functional. 
6. Montondo Trailer will make a bid on the restroom trailer within 2 
weeks of the inspection. Owner must prove they possess the title 
along with the owner’s manual.  
7. Upon agreed terms & payment Montondo Trailer will buy the 
restroom trailer & take possession.  
 
Thank you,  
 
 
Montondo Trailer, LLC.  
 
 

Page 85 of 146



Board of 
Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Friday, September 10, 2021
Title: Community Center Electrical Repairs Confirmation
Section & Item: 9.F
Department: R&M/Capital Projects
Fiscal Impact: $20,960.00
Contact: Matt Goetz, Property Services Manager, John W Coffey, ICMA-

CM, Community Manager
Attachments: signed bid
Reviewed by General 
Counsel: N/A
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Confirmation of the Community Manager’s approval of the Complete Electric, Inc. bid for electrical repairs at the 
Community Center.
 

Background and Summary Information
In early August, the electrical service from the panel south of the Tennis Courts failed. An extensive effort to trouble 
shoot the problem lead to the discovery of a failed buried electrical line. Due to the nature of the problem staff 
contacted a local vendor to diagnose the problem and proffer a solution. Due to the cost of crossing pavement to the 
nearest transformer, the most cost-effective solution involves running approximately 450 feet of buried line to the 
nearest transformer and replacement of the electrical panel and associated hardware.  Staff obtained the BOT’s consent 
to bypass soliciting a second quote at the August 24th BOT meeting to speed up the project and restore service to the 
following areas:

 Pickle Ball Courts lights
 Tennis Courts lights
 Horse Shoe area lights
 Marquee sign
 Memorial garden fountain pump
 Lawn bowling irrigation pump house 

On August 26th, the Community Manager signed an official bid from Complete Electric, Inc. in the amount of $20,960.00 
for the work. The vendor started the permitting process the following day.  
 
Sufficient fund balance is available for this project.
 
Hence, staff recommends the BOT confirm the Community Manager’s approval of Complete Electric, Inc.’s bid in the 
amount of $20,960.00 for electrical repairs at the Community Center, waiving the second bid requirement, and 
instructing staff to prepare the necessary budget amendment to fund the cost.

Page 86 of 146



Page 87 of 146



Page 88 of 146



Page 89 of 146



Board of 
Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Friday, September 10, 2021
Title: Building A Renovations Project: Change Order #13 

Confirmation
Section & Item: 9.G
Department: R&M/Capital Projects
Fiscal Impact: $34,292.13
Contact: Matt Goetz, Property Services Manager, John W Coffey, ICMA-

CM, Community Manager
Attachments: Building A Renovations Project CO 13, Bldg A Renovations 

Change Order tracker
Reviewed by General 
Counsel: N/A
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Confirmation of the Community Manager’s approval of Change Order #13 to add a work platform around the kitchen 
exhaust pipes as required by Brevard County subsequent to approval of the project’s building permit.
 

Background and Summary Information
Brevard County Building Department approved the Building A Renovations project construction plans in 2020 without 
work platforms around the hood exhaust pipes on the kitchen roof. On June 6, 2021, A County Building Inspector 
informed the general contractor that the project would not receive the final inspection approval without adding said 
platform. On June 27, 2021, BBRD’s engineer of record was able to substantiate that Brevard County’s last-minute 
requirement of the platform was based on their unique interpretation of Florida Fire Prevention Code (FFPC). Hence, 
staff authorized the design and costing of the addition to the original construction plans. 
 
On August 27, 2021, staff received the proposed Change Order #13 for fabrication, delivery and installation of the 
platform (excluding minor roofing expense to be provided by a third party) in the amount of $34,292.13. In consultation 
with BOT Chairman Maino, the Community Manager approved the change order to expedite the completion of the 
project (estimated time frame is 6-8 weeks after the building permit is approved). The Community Manager then 
notified the rest of the BOT of his action and that confirmation of his approval (exceeding his spending authority) would 
be placed on this agenda for transparency purposes.
 
Sufficient fund balance exists to cover this unexpected expense.
 
Overall, the work is 99.9% complete and staff anticipates the BOT and residents will be happy with the project once it is 
completed.
 
Hence, staff recommends the BOT confirm the Community Manager’s approval of Change Order #13 in the amount of 
$34,292.13 for installation of a kitchen hood exhaust pipes platform to Parkit Construction, Inc. and instruct staff to 
prepare the necessary budget amendment to fund the cost.

Page 90 of 146



Page 91 of 146



Page 92 of 146



Page 93 of 146



Building A Renovations Project Contract Cost History

Date

Change 

Order # Description

Change Order 

Cost

Revised 

Contract Cost Approved By

26-May-20 N/A Original contract 564,435.00    BOT

N/A N/A

Various direct equipment purchases by 

BBRD (previous and remaining 

planned) as allowed by the contract (191,992.55)  372,442.45    N/A

17-Nov-20 1

Replace structural support under 

rooftop HVAC systems ( 30 extra days) 22,245.60      394,688.05    Comm. Mgr.

17-Nov-20 2

Replace AC duct and exhaust fan 

system in eastside air handler room 10,044.89      404,732.94    Comm. Mgr.

17-Nov-20 3

Add Electrical run, step down 

transformer, lights, and ceil fan outlet 

to Pavilion (cost to be offset by CVO 

donation of $2,555.78) 17,767.50      422,500.44    BOT

17-Nov-20 4

Remove and replace storage area floor 

to facilitate plumbing changes 1,725.00        424,225.44    Comm. Mgr.

14-Jan-21 5

Removal of unforeseen vent pipe (was 

abandoned in place year unknown) 747.50            424,972.94    Comm. Mgr.

14-Jan-21 6

Removal of obsolete rooftop HVAC 

(abandoned in place circa 2007) 977.50            425,950.44    Comm. Mgr.

14-Jan-21 7

Conversion of propane tank usage to 

connection of existing 1,000 gallon 

underground tank) (7 extra days) 5,635.00        431,585.44    Comm. Mgr.

14-Jan-21 8

Removal of electrical outlet conflicting 

with new opening in a wall and 

installation of new electrical home run 3,450.00        435,035.44    Comm. Mgr.

16-Mar-21 9

Deconfliction of existing duct work for 

new hood system 1,897.00        436,932.44    BOT

16-Mar-21 10 Additional  hand sink 4,046.85        440,979.29    BOT

16-Mar-21 10a Time extension of 45 days -                  440,979.29    BOT

27-Apr-21 11

Main kitchen entrance ceiling 

adjustment 1,137.74        442,117.03    BOT

27-Apr-21 12 Increased size of freezer slab 2,519.52        444,636.55    BOT

27-Apr-21 12a Time extension of 39 days -                  444,636.55    BOT

27-Aug-21 13 Hood exhaust pipes platform 34,292.13      478,928.68    Comm. Mgr.

Total 106,486.23   

Direct purchases per contract 204,667.55    

Plug in equipment outside of contract 44,248.26      

Estimated Project Total 727,844.49   

FY22-26 5yrFM&CIP Budget Estimate 607,000.00    

Overage 120,844.49    19.91%

8/31/2021 2:44 PM

Page 94 of 146



Board of 
Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Friday, September 10, 2021
Title: FY22 Employee Pay and Classification Plan
Section & Item: 9.H
Department: Resident Relations, Customer Service
Fiscal Impact: $112,751.00 total (estimated)

$84,145.00 for COLA/Merit increases
$28,606.00 for minimum wage increases

Contact: Richard Armington, Resident Relations Manager, John W Coffey, 
ICMA-CM, Community Manager

Attachments: Resolution 2021-14, FY22 Pay and Class plan 
Reviewed by 
General Counsel: Yes
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Review recommended pay and classification plan and approve Resolution 2021-14.
 

Background and Summary Information
Beginning in FY17, BBRD adopted a formal pay and classification plan based on a representative employee pay survey 
and an internal comparative worth review. In early 2019, staff updated the previous salary survey.
 
The FY22 employee pay and classification plan will update BBRD’s personnel system for compliance with the new 
Florida minimum wages of $6.98 for tipped employees and $10.00 for non-tipped employees starting October 1, 2021. 
Of note, all tipped classifications will be paid the same while non-tipped classifications 1-5 will be paid the same. The 
FY22’s Pay and Classification Plan needs to be adopted prior to October 1, 2021 due to the voter approved State 
Constitutional Amendment increasing the minimum wages to $10.00 an hour for non-tipped and $6.98 an hour for 
tipped employees effective October 1, 2021, and an additional $1.00 an hour each subsequent year until 2026 when the 
annual increase returns to the CPI.
 
Staff will be requesting the BOT add funding to the FY23 Budget to pay for a formal pay and classification study to be 
conducted to guide future BOTs in how to handle pay and benefits related to the compression of the pay plan.
 
BBRD’s FY22 COLA and merit maximums (except if the minimum wage increase is larger) are as follows:
4.0% COLA 
1.0% Merit 
 
No changes are recommended to the pay plan.
 
The Community Manager recommends the BOT approve resolution #2021-14 thereby adopting the FY22 Employee Pay 
and Classification Plan effective September 27, 2021 with a maximum of a 5.0% combined COLA and merit increase for 
all eligible employees*. 

*    Indicates employees who are paid higher than their maximum pay grade for FY22 or receive minimum wage 
increases greater than 5.0% will not be eligible for either the COLA or merit increase.

Page 95 of 146



 1 

RESOLUTION 2021-14 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT 
SUPERSEDING AND REPLACING RESOLUTION 2019-17 AND 
ADOPTING AN EMPLOYEE PAY AND CLASSIFICATION PLAN FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING 
FOR CONFLICT WITH OTHER PROVISIONS; AND, PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees desires to maintain a competitive pay and classification 

plan to attract and maintain a qualified workforce; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees first adopted a formal pay and classification plan Resolution 

2017-18; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees adopted Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Operating Budget 
Resolution 2021-09 which contains funding for employee compensation; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees adopted Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Operating Budget 
Resolution 2021-09 which contains funding a maximum of 5.0% increase per employee to be split 
between a cost-of-living-increase and a merit-based increase; and 

 
WHEREAS, on December 4, 2020, the Board of Trustees adopted Resolution 2020-08 which 

adopted an Employee Pay and Classification plan for fiscal year 2020-2021; and 
 

WHEREAS, the State minimum pay for tipped non-exempt employees is scheduled to 
increase to $6.98 per hour on October 1, 2021; and 

 

WHEREAS, the State minimum pay for non-tipped non-exempt employees is scheduled to 
increase to $10.00 per hour on October 1, 2021; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees desires to maintain a pay and classification plan that is 

gender neutral and based on each employee’s ability to perform her/his job and job market 
conditions; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees desires to formally adopt an employee pay and 
classification plan so residents and employees understand the minimum and maximum pay for each 
position;  

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE BAREFOOT BAY 
RECREATION DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1.  The Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Employee Pay and Classification Plan appearing as 
Exhibit “A” of this Resolution is hereby adopted to serve as the basis of employee compensation of 

Page 96 of 146



 2 
 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District.  The Employee Pay and Classification Plan appearing as Exhibit “A” 
of this Resolution shall supersede and replace any previously adopted Employee Pay and 
Classification Plan and shall apply prospectively beginning September 27, 2021.  

 

Section 2.  Severability. 
 

 If any portion, clause, phrase, sentence or classification of this Resolution is held or declared 
to be either unconstitutional, invalid, inapplicable, inoperative or void, then such declaration shall 
not be construed to affect other portions of the resolution; it is hereby declared to be the expressed 
opinion of the Trustees of the Barefoot Bay Recreation District that any such unconstitutional, 
invalid, inapplicable, inoperative or void portion or portions of this Resolution did not induce its 
passage, and that without the inclusion of any such portion or portions of this Resolution, the 
Trustees would have enacted the valid constitutional portions thereof. 
 
 Section 3.  Conflict with other Provisions. 
 
 All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed and all 
resolutions or parts of resolutions not in conflict herewith are hereby continued in full force and 
effect. 
 
 Section 4.  Effective Date. 
 
 The Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Employee Pay and Classification Plan appearing in Exhibit “A” of 
this Resolution shall take effect September 27, 2021.   

 
 The foregoing resolution was moved for adoption by Trustee            _.  The motion was 
seconded by Trustee                and, upon being put to a vote, that vote was as follows: 

 
Chairman Michael R. Maino   
Trustee Jeff Grunow  
Trustee Jim Nugent  
Trustee Jeff Grunow   
Trustee Bruce Amoss   
  

 
 The Chairman thereupon declared this resolution Done and Adopted this 10th day of 
September 2021. 
      

BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT 
 

 
     By:  ______________________________________ 
      MICHAEL R. MAINO, Chairman 
 
     Attest: __________________________________________ 
      JEFF GRUNOW, Secretary 

Page 97 of 146



Approved FY22 Pay and Classification Plan

(Adopted by the BOT on September 10, 2021)

Position  Classification Grade Min Mid Max

Finance Manager Mgr. 115 35.14 42.17 49.19

Mgr. 114 34.28 41.14 47.99

Mgr. 113 33.45 40.13 46.82

Mgr. 112 32.63 39.16 45.68

Mgr. 111 31.83 38.20 44.57

Food & Beverage Manager Mgr. 110 31.06 37.27 43.48

Resident Relations/H.R. Manager Mgr. 109 30.30 36.36 42.42

Mgr. 108 29.56 35.47 41.38

Golf Operations Manager Mgr. 107 28.84 34.61 40.38

Mgr. 106 28.14 33.76 39.39

Mgr. 105 27.45 32.94 38.43

District Clerk Mgr. 104 26.78 32.14 37.49

Property Services Manager Mgr. 103 26.13 31.35 36.58

Lead Accountant Exempt 38 22.53 27.04 31.54

Exempt 37 21.98 26.38 30.77

Exempt 36 21.44 25.73 30.02

Exempt 35 20.92 25.10 29.29

Management Analyst Exempt 34 20.41 24.49 28.57

Exempt 33 19.91 23.90 27.88

Exempt 32 19.43 23.31 27.20

Exempt 31 18.95 22.74 26.53

Exempt 30 18.49 22.19 25.89

Exempt 29 18.04 21.65 25.26

Exempt 28 17.60 21.12 24.64

Exempt 27 17.17 20.60 24.04

Exempt 26 16.75 20.10 23.45

Exempt 25 16.34 19.61 22.88

Kitchen Supervisor Exempt 24 15.94 19.13 22.32

Accounting Associate III Non-Exempt 28 17.60 21.12 24.64

Accounting Associate II Non-Exempt 27 17.17 20.60 24.04

Golf Professional Non-Exempt 26 16.75 20.10 23.45

Accounting Associate I Non-Exempt 26 16.75 20.10 23.45

P.S. Crew Leader Non-Exempt 25 16.34 19.61 22.88

Custodian Supervisor Non-Exempt 25

Pool Sup./Office Coordinator Non-Exempt 25

H.R. Generalist/Office Coordinator Non-Exempt 24 15.94 19.13 22.32

Catering Coordinator Non-Exempt 23 15.56 18.67 21.78

Bldg. Tech III Non-Exempt 23

Maintenance/Audio-Visual Non-Exempt 22 15.18 18.21 21.25

Bldg. Tech II Non-Exempt 22

Bldg. Tech/Mechanic Non-Exempt 22

Non-Exempt 21 14.81 17.77 20.73

1

Page 98 of 146



Approved FY22 Pay and Classification Plan

(Adopted by the BOT on September 10, 2021)

Position  Classification Grade Min Mid Max

Administrative Assistant Non-Exempt 20 14.45 17.33 20.22

DOR/ARCC Administrative Assistant Non-Exempt 20

DOR/ARCC Inspector Non-Exempt 19 14.09 16.91 19.73

Calendar/RV Coordinator Non-Exempt 19

Lead Cook Non-Exempt 19

Lead Pool Tech Non-Exempt 19

Landscape/Irrigation Technician Non-Exempt 18 13.75 16.50 19.25

Community Watch Officer Non-Exempt 17 13.41 16.10 18.78

Accounting Clerk Non-Exempt 17

Bldg. Tech I Non-Exempt 17

Customer Service Clerk Non-Exempt 16 13.09 15.70 18.32

Lead Groundskeeper Non-Exempt 15 12.77 15.32 17.87

Custodian/AV Tech Non-Exempt 14 12.46 14.95 17.44

Non-Exempt 13 12.15 14.58 17.01

Lead Custodian Non-Exempt 12 11.86 14.23 16.60

Pool Tech Non-Exempt 12

Non-Exempt 11 11.57 13.88 16.19

Administrative Clerk Non-Exempt 10 11.28 13.54 15.80

Receptionist/Clerk Non-Exempt 10

(Golf) Clerk Non-Exempt 10

Cook Non-Exempt 10

Non-Exempt 9 11.01 13.21 15.41

Non-Exempt 8 10.74 12.89 15.04

Non-Exempt 7 10.48 12.57 14.67

Groundskeeper Non-Exempt 6 10.22 12.27 14.31

Pool Host Non-Exempt 6

Crowd Monitor Non-Exempt 6

Player Assistant/Cart Tech Non-Exempt 6

Non-Exempt 5 10.00 12.00 14.00

Non-Exempt 4 10.00 12.00 14.00

Custodian Non-Exempt 3 10.00 12.00 14.00

Crowd Monitor/Bar Back Non-Exempt 3

Non-Exempt 2 10.00 12.00 14.00

Dish Washer Non-Exempt 1 10.00 12.00 14.00

Courtesy Golf Cart Driver Non-Exempt 1

F&B Expeditor Non-Exempt 1

F&B Host Non-Exempt 1

Player Assistant Non-Exempt 1

Bar Supervisor Tipped Non-Exempt H 6.98 8.38 9.77

Tipped Non-Exempt G 6.98 8.38 9.77

Tipped Non-Exempt F 6.98 8.38 9.77

Tipped Non-Exempt E 6.98 8.38 9.77

Tipped Non-Exempt D 6.98 8.38 9.77

Lead Server Tipped Non-Exempt C 6.98 8.38 9.77

2

Page 99 of 146



Approved FY22 Pay and Classification Plan

(Adopted by the BOT on September 10, 2021)

Position  Classification Grade Min Mid Max

Lead Bartender Tipped Non-Exempt C

Tipped Non-Exempt B 6.98 8.38 9.77

Bartender Tipped Non-Exempt A 6.98 8.38 9.77

Server Tipped Non-Exempt A

3

Page 100 of 146



Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo
Date: Friday, September 10, 2021
Title: FY23 Budget Preparation Calendar
Section & Item: 9.I
Department: Adminstration, District Clerk
Fiscal Impact: N/A
Contact: John W Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
Attachments: FY23 Budget prep calendar
Reviewed by General Counsel: N/A
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Review the proposed calendar, selection of dates and times for workshops, and approval of the calendar.
 

Background and Summary Information
Starting in 2015, the BOT has formally adopted the upcoming budget preparation calendar for transparency purposes 
and to encourage greater participation in the process prior to the final BOT meeting (adoption of the assessment rate 
and budget) when most homeowners proffer their ideas, complaints, and comments. The proposed process for the 
development, review, and adoption of the FY23 Budget includes the following: 

 Solicitation of new R&M/Capital project ideas from the community and individual Trustees during mid-
November to early December

 Budget kick-off townhall meeting in mid-January
 Release of the FY23 WDPB (including the 5yrFM&CIP) in early March
 BOT FY23 Budget review workshops in mid-late March and early May
 5-week window (situated between BOT Budget workshops) allowing time for a possible request to go above CPI 

for critical needs, emergency contingencies, or unfunded mandates to be considered by the Brevard County 
Board of County Commissioners

 
While all dates and times can be changed by the BOT, staff requests the BOT pick from the many possible openings for 
the various workshops and then adopt the FY23 Budget Preparation Calendar. Said choices include:
 
Townhall Meeting (select one time) 

 Tuesday, January 18th at 7pm in Bldg. D/E
 Wednesday, January 19th at 1pm in Bldg. D/E
 Thursday, Jan. 20th at 9am in Bldg. D/E

 
FY23 Budget Review Workshops
(select two dates and times )

 Monday, March 14th at 7-9pm in Bldg. D/E
 Wednesday, March 23rd at 10am-noon in Bldg. D/E
 Thursday, March 24th at 10am-noon in Bldg. D/E
 Thursday, March 24th at 7-9pm in Bldg. D/E

 
(select 2 dates and times )

Page 101 of 146



 Tuesday, May 3rd at 10am-noon in Bldg. D/E
 Tuesday, May 3rd at 7-9pm in Bldg. D/E
 Thursday, May 5th at 10am-noon in Bldg. D/E
 Thursday, May 5th at 7-9pm in Bldg. D/E

 

Page 102 of 146



FY23 Budget Prep Calendar

Task # Description Due

Date

1 BOT approves FY23 Budget Prep. Calendar  8‐Oct

8 FY23‐27 FM&CIP Townhall Meeting 18‐Jan

15

Prior fiscal year Financial Statement and FY23 WDPB (including 

5yrFM&CIP) submitted to Trustees.  Public inspection copies placed 

in BBRD offices and electronic copy placed on BBRD.org. 7‐Mar‐22

16

Electronic copy of FY23 WDPB and Homeowner's Version placed on 

www.bbrd.org 9‐Mar‐22

17 BOT Budget workshops as established by BOT Mar‐Apr‐May

18

Time reserved for possible appeal to BOCC regarding setting 

assessment rate above CPI Mar‐Apr‐May

19

Publish prior fiscal year Financial Statement in generally circulated 

newspaper within Brevard County 25‐29Apr

20

BOT adopts proposed draft (line‐item budget) for mail out to 

property owners of record and set Public Hearing date (must be 21 

days after notice is published) 24‐May

21

Publish notice of Public Hearing in newspaper of general circulation 

(must be 21 days prior to hearing).  Mail proposed budget (line‐

items), proposed assessment rate, and prior year financial 

statements to all property owners of record. 5‐Jun

22

Public Hearing, for community input, on proposed budget and 

proposed assessment.  BOT will consider two resolutions: one to 

adopt the FY23 Budget and one to set the assessment rate 26‐Jun

23

BOT certifies the Non‐Ad Valorem Assessment Roll to Brevard County 

Tax Collector 23‐Aug

24

Deadline for staff to transmit the certification of the Non‐Ad Valorem 

Assessment Roll to Brevard County Tax Collector 15‐Sep

25 FY22 ends 30‐Sep

26 FY23 begins 1‐Oct

Shaded rows indicate public meetings or workshops

Page 103 of 146



Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo
Date: Friday, September 10, 2021
Title: FY21 Audit Planning Communications Letter
Section & Item: 9.J
Department: Administration, Finance
Fiscal Impact: None
Contact: Charles Henley, Finance Manager, John W Coffey, ICMA-CM, 

Community Manager
Attachments: Req Com w Gov_BBRD_Signed Adobe 8.26.21
Reviewed by General 
Counsel: NA
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Review and Acknowledge the FY21 Audit Planning Communications 
 

Background and Summary Information
According to Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards (GAGAS), our independent auditor, Moore Stephens 
Lovelace, P.A., is required to communicate certain information with the officials of Barefoot Bay Recreation District 
during the planning stage of the District’s Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2021 financial statement audit.
 
Staff has received the Fiscal Year 2021 Audit Planning Communications under the guidelines of GAGAS from our 
independent auditor, Moore Stephens Lovelace, P.A. We have been directed to present the Audit Planning to the Board 
of Trustees of Barefoot Bay Recreation District. The Audit Planning outlines the Identification of Financial Statement 
Elements, Audit Objectives, Auditor Responsibilities, Management Responsibilities, General Audit Procedures, Internal 
Control Audit Procedures, Compliance Audit Procedures, Accounting and Reporting Issues, and Audit Schedule.
 
Of note, the Auditors anticipate conducting fieldwork during December and then presenting the Audit findings to the 
BOT at one of the February 2022 BOT meetings.
 
Staff recommends the BOT acknowledge receipt of the Audit Planning Communications.

Page 104 of 146



 

 

August 26, 2021 
 
 
Board of Trustees 
Barefoot Bay Recreation District 
Barefoot Bay, Florida 
 
 
Our professional standards require that we inform you of certain matters related to our audit of 
Barefoot Bay Recreation District, Florida’s (the District) financial statements for the fiscal year 
ending September 30, 2021.  This report is intended to convey those matters to you. 
 
Our audit is designed to express an opinion on the basic financial statements of the District.  We 
have performed an initial assessment of risk areas we consider significant to the risk of material 
misstatement of the District’s financial statements.  Based on our assessment, we intend to 
execute our audit plan using procedures to mitigate those risks. 
 
Communication is an essential part of the audit process.  After reviewing our plan, if you have 
any questions, concerns, or would like us to consider other matters, please contact me at 
(407) 740-5400 or you can reach me directly on my cell phone at (407) 715-0098. 
 
In addition, we are pleased to provide you with a copy of our most recent Peer Review Report 
(attached).  The public accounting industry has placed significant emphasis on strengthening the 
peer review process.  This emphasis is focused on improving public accounting and auditing 
standards to protect the public and ensure the reliability of audited financial information.  With 
these more stringent requirements, we are proud to inform you that our 2020 Peer Review Report 
had no findings.  In accordance with Peer Review Standards, the selection of our governmental 
clients was also included in this review. 
 
We are dedicated to delivering the quality service you expect and deserve.  We appreciate the 
opportunity to serve the District. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Joel Knopp, CPA 
Engagement Shareholder 
 
Attachment 
 

Page 105 of 146



Barefoot Bay Recreation District, Florida 
Audit Planning 2021 

Required Communications Under Government Auditing Standards  
 
 

2 

Audit Schedule and Current Status 

Below is a table of our agreed-upon audit schedule for the 2021 audit: 

December 2021    Year-end Fieldwork 

January 2022    Review of Financial Statements 

February 2022  Presentation to Board of Trustees 

March 31, 2022    Submission to State 

 
Accounting and Reporting Standards Impacting Governmental Audits 

New Government Accounting Standards Issued 
 GASB 84 - Fiduciary Activities.  This standard will become effective for fiscal year end 

September 30, 2021.  This standard establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities 
of state and local governments.  The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether the 
government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity, and (2) the beneficiaries 
with whom a fiduciary relationship exists.  An activity meeting the criteria should be 
reported in a fiduciary fund in the basic financial statements.  This standard is not 
expected to impact the District’s financial statements. 
 

 GASB 87 - Leases.  This standard will become effective for fiscal year end 
September 30, 2022.  This standard changes the accounting and financial reporting for 
leases by governments by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for 
leases that previously were classified as operating leases.  This standard establishes a 
single model for lease accounting based on the principle that leases are financings of the 
right to use an underlying asset.  Under this standard, a lessee government is required to 
recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use asset and a lessor government is 
required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources.  Management 
is aware of this standard and intends to properly evaluate the impact and ensure that any 
accounting and reporting impact is properly addressed in the year the standard is required 
to be implemented. 
 

 GASB 89 - Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction 
Period.  This standard will become effective for fiscal year end September 30, 2022.  
This standard establishes accounting requirements for interest cost incurred before the 
end of a construction period.  This standard also reiterates that in financial statements 
prepared using the current financial resources measurement focus, interest cost incurred 
before the end of a construction period should be recognized as an expenditure on a basis 
consistent with governmental fund accounting principles.  This standard is not expected 
to materially impact the District’s financial statements.  
 
 

  

Page 106 of 146



Barefoot Bay Recreation District, Florida 
Audit Planning 2021 

Required Communications Under Government Auditing Standards  
 
 

3 

Accounting and Reporting Standards Impacting Governmental Audits (Cont.) 
New Government Accounting Standards Issued (Cont.) 
 GASB 90 - Majority Equity Interests - An Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and 

No. 61.  This standard will become effective for fiscal year end September 30, 2021.  
This standard will improve the consistency and comparability of reporting a govern-
ment’s majority equity interest in a legally separate organization and to improve the 
relevance of financial statement information for certain component units.  This standard 
also requires that a component unit in which a government has a 100 percent equity 
interest account for its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred 
inflows of resources at acquisition value at the date the government acquired a 100 
percent equity interest in the component unit.  This standard is not expected to impact the 
District’s financial statements. 
 

 GASB 91 - Conduit Debt Obligations.  This standard will become effective for fiscal 
year end September 30, 2023.  This standard clarifies the existing definition of a conduit 
debt obligation, establishes a conduit obligation is not a liability of the issuer, establishes 
standards for accounting and financial reporting of additional commitments and voluntary 
commitments and voluntary commitments extended by issuers and arrangements asso-
ciated with conduit debt obligations, and improving required note disclosures.  This 
standard also addresses arrangements - often characterized as leases - that are associated 
with debt obligations.  This standard is not expected to impact the District’s financial 
statements. 
 

 GASB 92 - Omnibus 2020.  This standard will become effective for fiscal year end 
September 30, 2022.  This standard will enhance comparability in accounting and 
financial reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative literature by 
addressing practice issues that have been identified during implementation and 
application of certain GASB Statements.  This Statement addresses a variety of topics 
and includes specific provisions about the following: (1) The effective date of Statement 
No. 87, Leases, and Implementation Guide No. 2019-3, Leases, for interim financial 
reports; (2) Reporting of intra-entity transfers of assets between a primary government 
employer and a component unit defined benefit pension plan or defined benefit other 
postemployment benefit (OPEB) plan; (3) The applicability of Statements No. 73, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not within 
the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB 
Statements 67 and 68, as amended, and No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment 
Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, as amended, to reporting assets accumulated for 
postemployment benefits; (4) The applicability of certain requirements of Statement 
No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, to postemployment benefit arrangements; (5) Measurement 
of liabilities (and assets, if any) related to asset retirement obligations (AROs) in a 
government acquisition; (6) Reporting by public entity risk pools for amounts that are 
recoverable from reinsurers or excess insurers; (7) Reference to nonrecurring fair value 
measurements of assets or liabilities in authoritative literature; (8) Terminology used to 
refer to derivative instruments.  This standard is not expected to impact the District’s 
financial statements.   

Page 107 of 146



Barefoot Bay Recreation District, Florida 
Audit Planning 2021 

Required Communications Under Government Auditing Standards  
 
 

4 

Accounting and Reporting Standards Impacting Governmental Audits (Cont.) 
New Government Accounting Standards Issued (Cont.) 
 GASB 93 - Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates.  This standard will become effective 

for fiscal year end June 30, 2022, with the exception of the removal of LIBOR as an 
appropriate benchmark interest rate which will become effective September 30, 2023.  
The objective of this Statement is to address accounting and financial reporting 
implications that result from the replacement of an Interbank Offered Rate (IBOR).  This 
Statement achieves that objective by: (1) Providing exceptions for certain hedging 
derivative instruments to the hedge accounting termination provisions when an IBOR is 
replaced as the reference rate of the hedging derivative instrument’s variable payment; 
(2) Clarifying the hedge accounting termination provisions when a hedged item is 
amended to replace the reference rate; (3) Clarifying that the uncertainty related to the 
continued availability of IBORs does not, by itself, affect the assessment of whether the 
occurrence of a hedged expected transaction is probable; (4) Removing LIBOR as an 
appropriate benchmark interest rate for the qualitative evaluation of the effectiveness of 
an interest rate swap; (5) Identifying a Secured Overnight Financing Rate and the 
Effective Federal Funds Rate as appropriate benchmark interest rates for the qualitative 
evaluation of the effectiveness of an interest rate swap; (6) Clarifying the definition of 
reference rate, as it is used in Statement 53, as amended.  This standard is not expected to 
impact the District’s financial statements. 
 

 GASB 94 - Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment 
Arrangements.  This standard will become effective for fiscal year end September 30, 
2023.  The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by addressing 
issues related to public-private and public-public partnership arrangements (PPPs).  This 
Statement also provides guidance for accounting and financial reporting for availability 
payment arrangements (APAs).  The requirements of this Statement will improve 
financial reporting by establishing the definitions of PPPs and APAs and providing 
uniform guidance on accounting and financial reporting for transactions that meet those 
definitions.  This standard is not expected to impact the District’s financial statements. 

  

Page 108 of 146



Barefoot Bay Recreation District, Florida 
Audit Planning 2021 

Required Communications Under Government Auditing Standards  
 
 

5 

Accounting and Reporting Standards Impacting Governmental Audits (Cont.) 
New Government Accounting Standards Issued (Cont.) 
 GASB 96 - Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements.  This standard 

will become effective for fiscal year end September 30, 2024.  This Statement provides 
guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based information 
technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users (governments). This 
Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use 
subscription asset—an intangible asset—and a corresponding subscription liability; 
(3) provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, 
including implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures regarding a 
SBITA.  To the extent relevant, the standards for SBITAs are based on the standards 
established in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended.  This standard is not expected to 
impact the District’s financial statements. 
 

 GASB 97 - Certain Component Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans.  The requirements of 
this Statement that are related to the accounting and financial reporting for Section 457 
plans are effective for fiscal year end September 30, 2023, while all other requirements 
are effective immediately.  The primary objectives of this Statement are to (1) increase 
consistency and comparability related to the reporting of fiduciary component units in 
circumstances in which a potential component unit does not have a governing board and 
the primary government performs the duties that a governing board typically would 
perform; (2) mitigate costs associated with the reporting of certain defined contribution 
pension plans, defined contribution OPEB plans, and employee benefit plans other than 
pension plans or OPEB plans as fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund financial 
statements; and (3) enhance the relevance, consistency, and comparability of the 
accounting and financial reporting for Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 deferred 
compensation plans (Section 457 plans) that meet the definition of a pension plan and for 
benefits provided through those plans.  This standard is not expected to impact the 
District’s financial statements. 

New Auditing Standards Issued 
There are no new auditing standards issued in the current year that would impact the 
District’s audit. 
 
  

Page 109 of 146



Barefoot Bay Recreation District, Florida 
Audit Planning 2021 

Required Communications Under Government Auditing Standards  
 
 

6 

Significant Audit and Financial Reporting Issues Identified 

The following is a list of audit areas we consider significant to ensure that we plan our audit 
to properly address the risk of material misstatement and noncompliance affecting your 
financial statements.  Please review this list.  If you have any questions, or believe the list is 
incomplete, please contact us to ensure that we have properly identified all significant areas. 
 Internal control over financial accounting and reporting 

 Information Technology (IT) 

 Financial statement preparation procedures 

 Capital assets accounting, including depreciation, project tracking, capital leases, etc. 

 Investment policies and procedures, portfolio management, income allocation, etc. 

 Revenue recognition policies and procedures 

 Debt, including compliance with applicable covenants 

 Net Position classifications 

 Payroll processing 

 Budgetary compliance and accountability 

 Compliance with contracts, laws, regulations, and grant agreements 

 Consideration of fraud, waste, and abuse 

 Effects of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic and remote auditing 

Additional Items for Audit Consideration 
 Implementation of GASB 87 in fiscal year 2022 

 
Identification of Financial Statement Elements 

We will audit the District’s basic financial statements for the fiscal year ending 
September 30, 2021.  The basic financial statements include the Statement of Net Position 
and Governmental Funds Balance Sheets; Statements of Activities and Governmental Funds 
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances; and Notes to the Financial 
Statements. 
Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America provide for certain 
required supplementary information (RSI), such as management’s discussion and analysis 
(MD&A), budgetary comparison schedules, and other postemployment benefit schedules, to 
accompany the basic financial statements.  As part of our engagement, we will apply certain 
limited procedures to the District’s RSI, but it will not be audited.  These limited procedures 
will consist principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement 
and presentation, which management is responsible for affirming to us in its representation 
letter.  Unless we encounter problems with the presentation of the RSI or with procedures 
relating to it, we will disclaim an opinion on it. 

Page 110 of 146



Barefoot Bay Recreation District, Florida 
Audit Planning 2021 

Required Communications Under Government Auditing Standards  
 
 

7 

Auditor Responsibilities 
As your auditors, we are responsible for: 
 Expressing opinions as to whether your basic financial statements are fairly presented, in 

all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP) and to report on the fairness of the additional information referred to under 
Identification of Financial Statement Elements when considered in relation to the 
basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

 Reporting on internal control related to the financial statements and compliance with the 
provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants, noncom-
pliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards. 

 Informing you in our reports on internal control and compliance that the reports are 
intended for the information and use of the District, management, specific legislative or 
regulatory bodies; and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than 
these specified parties. 

 Informing you in advance of any reasons that would result in us issuing other than 
unmodified reports on the financial statements. 

 Informing you that we may decline to express opinions or to issue a report as a result of 
this engagement if we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form, or have not 
formed, those opinions. 

 Conducting our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards; the 
standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General; 
and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such opinions and to 
render the required reports. 

 Communicating to you the planned audit schedule.  Page 2 of this report documents the 
timetable agreed upon with management for the September 30, 2021 audit. 

 Communicating audit areas we consider significant to ensure that we plan our audit to 
properly address the risk of material misstatement to your financial statements.  A list of 
those areas can be found on page 6 of this report. 

 Communicating the concept of materiality.  The concept of materiality recognizes that 
some matters, either individually or in the aggregate, are important for the fair presen-
tation of your basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP, while other matters 
are not important.  In performing the audit, based on our professional judgment, we 
assess matters that, either individually or in the aggregate, could be material to the finan-
cial statements.  Our consideration of materiality is based on our professional judgment. 

 Informing you that at the completion of the audit we will be requesting certain 
representations from management at the conclusion of the audit. 

 Informing you regarding some general audit procedures, as well as procedures related to 
internal controls and compliance.  Discussion of those items follows. 

  

Page 111 of 146



Barefoot Bay Recreation District, Florida 
Audit Planning 2021 

Required Communications Under Government Auditing Standards  
 
 

8 

Audit Procedures - General 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclo-
sures in the financial statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number 
of transactions to be examined and the areas to be tested.  We will plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, 
(3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are 
attributable to the District or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the 
District.  Because the determination of abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards 
do not expect auditors to provide reasonable assurance of detecting abuse. 
Because an audit is designed to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance and because 
we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material 
misstatements or noncompliance may exist and not be detected by us.  In addition, an audit is 
not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regu-
lations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial statements or major 
programs.  However, we will inform you of any material errors and any fraudulent financial 
reporting or misappropriation of assets that comes to our attention.  We will also inform you 
of any violations of laws or governmental regulations that comes to our attention, unless 
clearly inconsequential.  Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our 
audit and does not extend to any later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors. 
Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions 
recorded in the accounts and may include tests of the physical existence of inventories and 
direct confirmation of receivables and certain other assets and liabilities by correspondence 
with selected individuals, creditors, and financial institutions.  We will request written repre-
sentations from attorneys representing the District as part of the engagement, and they may 
bill the District for responding to these inquiries.  At the conclusion of our audit, we will also 
require certain written representations from management about the financial statements and 
related matters. 
  

Page 112 of 146



Barefoot Bay Recreation District, Florida 
Audit Planning 2021 

Required Communications Under Government Auditing Standards  
 
 

9 

Audit Procedures - Internal Controls 
Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the District and its environment, 
including internal control, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements and to design the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures.  
Tests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain controls that we 
consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the 
financial statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts 
and other noncompliance matters that have a direct and material effect on the financial 
statements.  Our tests, if performed, will be less in scope than would be necessary to render 
an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on 
internal control issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 
An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant 
deficiencies.  However, during the audit, we will communicate to management and those 
charged with governance internal control related matters that are required to be commun-
icated under professional standards and Government Auditing Standards. 
 
 

Audit Procedures - Compliance 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we will perform tests of the District’s compliance with applicable 
laws and regulations and the provisions of contracts and agreements, including grant agree-
ments.  However, the objective of those procedures will not be to provide an opinion on 
overall compliance, and we will not express such an opinion in our report on compliance 
issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 

  

Page 113 of 146



Barefoot Bay Recreation District, Florida 
Audit Planning 2021 

Required Communications Under Government Auditing Standards  
 
 

10 

Governance and Management Responsibilities 
Those charged with governance and management, except where indicated, are jointly 
responsible for: 
 The basic financial statements and all accompanying information, as well as all 

representations contained therein in conformity with GAAP. 
 Making all management decisions and performing all management functions relating 

to the financial statements and related notes and for accepting full responsibility for 
such decisions. 

 Acknowledging in the management representation letter that it has reviewed and 
approved the financial statements and related notes prior to their issuance and has 
accepted responsibility for them. 

 Management has designated Charles Henley, Finance Manager, as the responsible 
party for oversight of its audit. 

 Establishing and maintaining internal controls, including monitoring ongoing 
activities; the selection and application of accounting principles; and the fair 
presentation in the basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP. 

 Making all financial records and related information available to us and for the 
accuracy and completeness of that information.  Adjusting the financial statements to 
correct material misstatements and for confirming to us in the representation letter 
that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during the current 
engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both 
individually and in the aggregate, to the basic financial statements. 

 The design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, 
and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the District 
involving (1) management, (2) employees who have significant roles in internal 
control, and (3) others where the fraud or illegal acts could have a material effect on 
the financial statements.  This responsibility includes informing us of any allegations 
of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the District received in communications from 
employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or others. 

 Identifying and ensuring that the District complies with applicable laws, regulations, 
contracts, agreements, and grants, and for taking timely and appropriate steps to 
remedy any fraud, illegal acts, violations of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse 
that we may report. 

 Establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings and 
recommendations. 

 Identifying for us previous audits, other engagements, or studies related to the objec-
tives discussed in the Audit Objectives section.  This responsibility includes relaying 
to us corrective actions taken to address significant findings and recommendations 
resulting from those audits, other engagements, or studies.  Management is also 
responsible for providing its views on our current findings, conclusions, and 
recommendations, as well as planned corrective actions. 

  

Page 114 of 146



Barefoot Bay Recreation District, Florida 
Audit Planning 2021 

Required Communications Under Government Auditing Standards  
 
 

11 

Auditor General 
The following are compliance areas identified by the Auditor General to test on an annual 
basis if they are applicable and are determined to have a direct and material effect on the 
financial statements: 
 Determine whether or not corrective actions have been taken to address significant 

findings and recommendations made in the preceding and second preceding annual 
financial audit reports. 

 Address in the management letter any recommendations to improve financial 
management, accounting procedures, and internal controls. 

 Address violations of provisions of contracts and grant agreements or abuse that has 
an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but worthy of 
management’s attention. 

 Disclose in the management letter, or in the notes to the financial statements, the 
name or official title and legal authority for the primary government. 

 Include a statement in the management letter as to whether or not the District has met 
one or more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and 
identification of the specific conditions met. 

 Apply financial condition assessment procedures in connection with our audit. 
 

The following is a compliance area identified by the Auditor General where a separate 
opinion on compliance is reported: 
 Review compliance with the provisions of Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, 

regarding the investment of public funds. 
 

Page 115 of 146



 

 

 
8550 United Plaza Blvd., Ste. 1001    –    Baton Rouge, LA 70809 

225-922-4600 Phone    –    225-922-4611 Fax    –    pncpa.com 
 

A Professional Accounting Corporation 

 

 

Report on the Firm’s System of Quality Control 
 

 
To the Partners of MSL, P.A. 
and the National Peer Review Committee 
 
We have reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of MSL, P.A. (the firm) 
applicable to engagements not subject to PCAOB permanent inspection in effect for the year ended June 30, 2020.  Our 
peer review was conducted in accordance with the Standards for Performing and Reporting on Peer Reviews 
established by the Peer Review Board of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (Standards). 
 
A summary of the nature, objectives, scope, limitations of, and the procedures performed in a System Review as 
described in the Standards may be found at www.aicpa.org/prsummary.  The summary also includes an explanation of 
how engagements identified as not performed or reported in conformity with applicable professional standards, if any, 
are evaluated by a peer reviewer to determine a peer review rating. 
 
Firm’s Responsibility 
 
The firm is responsible for designing a system of quality control and complying with it to provide the firm with 
reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with applicable professional standards in all material 
respects.  The firm is also responsible for evaluating actions to promptly remediate engagements deemed as not 
performed or reported in conformity with professional standards, when appropriate, and for remediating weaknesses in 
its system of quality control, if any. 
 
Peer Reviewer’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the design of the system of quality control and the firm’s compliance 
therewith based on our review. 
 
Required Selections and Considerations 
 
Engagements selected for review included engagements performed under Government Auditing Standards, including 
compliance audits under the Single Audit Act; audits of employee benefit plans, and an audit of a broker-dealer. 
 
As part of our peer review, we considered reviews by regulatory entities as communicated to the firm, if applicable, in 
determining the nature and extent of our procedures. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of MSL P.A. applicable to 
engagements not subject to PCAOB permanent inspection in effect for the year ended June 30, 2020, has been suitably 
designed and complied with to provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity 
with applicable professional standards in all material respects.  Firms can receive a rating of pass, pass with 
deficiency(ies) or fail.   MSL, P.A. has received a peer review rating of pass. 
 
 
 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
January 7, 2021 

Page 116 of 146



Board of 
Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Friday, September 10, 2021
Title: Neighborhood Revitalization Program (NRP) Purchase 

Confirmation: 333 Papaya Circle
Section & Item: 9.K
Department: Resident Relations, DOR
Fiscal Impact: Sale Price $20,300.00 
Contact: Richard Armington, Resident Relations Manager, John W Coffey, 

ICMA-CM, Community Manager
Attachments: Executed Purchase Approval and Contract
Reviewed by General 
Counsel: Yes
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Confirmation of 333 Papaya Circle purchase per the Policy Manual’s “Purchase or Sale of Properties by BBRD Using 
Neighborhood Revitalization Program (NRP) Funding” (page 11).
 

Background and Summary Information
• The Chairman of the NRP BOT Sub-Committee shall be authorized to approve (as recommended by the Community 
Manager or designee) the expenditures of NRP funds in excess of $7,500.00 and not to exceed $25,000.00 by staff 
toward the acquisition of a property identified by the Sub-Committee in accordance with NRP rules as established by 
the BOT.

• The purchase of the property shall be ratified by the Board of Trustees at the next scheduled regular meeting of the 
Board of Trustees.

On May 6, 2021, NRP Chairman Maino authorized the purchase of 333 Papaya Circle for $20,300.00. After closing, staff 
will obtain an asbestos study of the home and then demolition. Once a clean title is secured, the property will be listed 
for sale (of which the proceeds will go back into the NRP project line-item for future use to improve the community via 
the removal of derelict homes and the sale of the vacant property).

Staff apologies for inadvertently not getting this confirmation on an earlier agenda.

Staff recommends the BOT confirms the purchase of 333 Papaya Circle via the Neighborhood Revitalization Program.

Page 117 of 146



Page 118 of 146



Page 119 of 146



Page 120 of 146



Page 121 of 146



Page 122 of 146



Page 123 of 146



Page 124 of 146



Page 125 of 146



Page 126 of 146



Page 127 of 146



Page 128 of 146



Page 129 of 146



Page 130 of 146



Board of 
Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Friday, September 10, 2021
Title: Neighborhood Revitalization Program (NRP) Purchase 

Confirmation: 401 Raven Drive
Section & Item: 9.L
Department: Resident Relations, DOR
Fiscal Impact: Sale Price: $13,200.00
Contact: Richard Armington, Resident Relations Manager
Attachments: Executed Purchase Approval and Contract
Reviewed by General 
Counsel: Yes
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Confirmation of 401 Raven Drive purchase per the Policy Manual’s “Purchase or Sale of Properties by BBRD Using 
Neighborhood Revitalization Program (NRP) Funding” (page 16).
 

Background and Summary Information
• The Chairman of the NRP BOT Sub-Committee shall be authorized to approve (as recommended by the Community 
Manager or designee) the expenditures of NRP funds in excess of $15,000.00 and not to exceed $25,000.00 by staff 
toward the acquisition of a property identified by the Sub-Committee in accordance with NRP rules as established by 
the BOT.

• The purchase of the property shall be ratified by the Board of Trustees at the next scheduled regular meeting of the 
Board of Trustees.

On August 19, 2021, NRP Vice Chair Michael Morrissey as requested by Chairman Maino authorized the purchase of 401 
Raven Drive for $13,200.00. Once a clean title is secured, the property will be listed for sale (of which the proceeds will 
go back into the NRP project line-item for future use to improve the community via the removal of derelict homes and 
the sale of the vacant property).

Staff recommends the BOT confirms the purchase of 401 Raven Drive via the Neighborhood Revitalization Program.

Page 131 of 146



Page 132 of 146



Page 133 of 146



Page 134 of 146



Page 135 of 146



Page 136 of 146



Page 137 of 146



Page 138 of 146



Page 139 of 146



Page 140 of 146



Page 141 of 146



Page 142 of 146



Page 143 of 146



Page 144 of 146



1  

Barefoot Bay Recreation District 
625 Barefoot Boulevard, Administration Building 

Barefoot Bay, FL 32976-9233 
 

Phone 772-664-3141 
Fax 772-664-1928 

 
 
 
 
 

Memo To: Board of Trustees 
 
From: John W. Coffey, Community Manager, ICMA-CM 
 
Date: September 10, 2021 
 
Subject: Manager’s Report 
 
 
Resident Relations 
ARCC Meeting 08/31/2021  

• 3 old business permit: 2 extensions approved and 1 tabled again (permit package is still incomplete) 

• 8 consent permits: all approved 

• 4 other permits: 3 approved and 1 denied  
 
Next ARCC Meeting 09/14/2021  

• Will be held in Building D/E at 9am 
 
Violations Committee Meeting 08/27/2021  

• 6 cases came into compliance prior to the meeting 

• 5 cases presented and found in violation 
 
Next Violations Committee Meeting 
• Scheduled for September 10th in Bldg. D/E at 10am 

 
August Interesting Facts 

• 27 home sales 

• 20 Orientations presented 

• 32 Residents in attendance 
 
Food & Beverage 
Great October events.  Save the dates! 

• Saturday October 2, 2021 
o The German Club and Paradise Planners are holding an Oktoberfest in the Pool #1 area starting at 

noon.  
o An International Polka Band will perform on the Lakeside Stage from 12:30-4:00pm.   
o Paradise Planners will transform the area into a fairy tale German village.   
o Kegs of Warsteiner beer, a favorite of our Barefoot Bay German Club residents, will be flowing as 

well as brats, German potato salad, hot dogs, big pretzels, and more.   

Page 145 of 146



2  

o Tickets nor badges are required for this event.   
 

• October 16, 2021 
o This year’s annual walk for cancer is themed “Color My World Cancer Free” and is a fundraiser for 

all cancers.   
o The walk will be held under the oaks by the New Administration Building at 9am.  Sign up is going 

on now in the CVO office.   
o There will be music, a special drink menu, snacks and activities in the Pavilion area after the walk.  

BBRD Departments have a friendly competition to see who can raise the most funds for the 
charity.  While the District collectively raised over $5,000 of the $14,000 raised for the Sea of Pink 
cause in 2019, the Administration team beat out the other Departments by raising over $4,000.  
We’ll see which Department can raise the bar this year.   

 
 

Property Services 

• Patched wash out at the ABM worksite, larger more extensive repair coming soon 

• Replaced 5 interior lights at the Shopping Center 

• Replaced some damaged white bollards 

• Re installed sound panels, cleaned the building, buffed out the floors prior to re-opening of the 
assembly room 

• Removed old office walls in the new CVO office 

• Replaced the pitcher pump at the pier  

• Replaced door closure assembly at the Pro Shop 

• Cleaned out the gutters at the Pro Shop 

• Re surfaced the Boccie ball courts in preparation of the upcoming winter season 

• Installed new lights on the palms at US1 

• Continued to solicit bids for upcoming projects 
 
 
Golf-Pro Shop 

• End of Fiscal Year Inventory 

o Merchandise sales inside the Pro Shop will cease at 12pm on September 30th for annual BBRD 
Inventory management 

 

Page 146 of 146


	1. Thought of the Day
	2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag
	3. Roll Call
	4. Presentations and Proclamations
	A. 9/11 Proclamation and Milestones

	5. Approval of Minutes
	A. Minutes dated August 24, 2021
	08.24.2021


	6. Treasurer’s Report
	A. Treasurer's Report
	Treasurers BOT Meeting Report 210910


	7. Audience Participation
	8. Unfinished Business
	A. Discussion of COVID-19 Precautions
	Agenda Memo

	B. Shopping Center Electrical Upgrades Approval of Ag
	Agenda Memo

	C. Steward Medical Group Proposed Ground Lease
	Agenda Memo
	Draft Ground Lease Agreement BBRD and Steward Medical Group
	Exhibit A Legal Description for Ground Lease with Parcel Sketch
	Exhibit B Conceptual Site Plan Steward Medical Group Land Lease
	Executed LOI December 3, 2020 Ground Lease Steward Medical Group-BBRD


	9. New Business
	A. DOR Violation 21-001596 750 Lark Drive (Vehicle Vi
	Agenda Memo
	21-001596 750 Lark Drive

	B. DOR Violation 21-001867 750 Lark Drive (Lawn and L
	Agenda Memo
	21-001867 750 Lark Drive

	C. DOR Violation 21-001516 750 Lark Drive (Condition 
	Agenda Memo
	21-001516 750 Lark Drive

	D. “Color Our World Cancer Free” Request for Waiver o
	Agenda Memo
	Request email

	E. Restroom Trailer by Pickle Ball/Tennis Courts Awar
	Agenda Memo
	Portable Restroom Trailers LLC bid
	Montondo Trailer bid

	F. Community Center Electrical Repairs Confirmation
	Agenda Memo
	signed bid

	G. Building A Renovations Project: Change Order #13 C
	Agenda Memo
	Building A Renovations Project CO 13
	Bldg A Renovations Change Order tracker

	H. FY22 Employee Pay and Classification Plan
	Agenda Memo
	Resolution 2021-14
	FY22 Pay and Class plan 

	I. FY23 Budget Preparation Calendar
	Agenda Memo
	FY23 Budget prep calendar

	J. FY21 Audit Planning Communications Letter
	Agenda Memo
	Req Com w Gov_BBRD_Signed Adobe 8.26.21

	K. Neighborhood Revitalization Program (NRP) Purchase
	Agenda Memo
	Executed Purchase Approval and Contract

	L. Neighborhood Revitalization Program (NRP) Purchase
	Agenda Memo
	Executed Purchase Approval and Contract


	10.  Manager’s Report
	A. September 10th Community Manager's Report
	Mgr report 10Sep21


	11. Attorney’s Report
	12. Incidental Trustee Remarks
	13. Adjournment



